Agenda
We welcome you to
Tandridge Local Committee
Your Councillors, Your Community
and the Issues that Matter to You
A link to view the live and recorded webcast of
the meeting will be available on the Tandridge
Local Committee page on the council’s
website.

Discussion
Petition – Sunnybanks
Parking Review
Smallfield Pedestrian Accessibility and Safety
Scheme

Venue
Location: Tandridge District Council
offices, Station Road East, Oxted, RH8
0BT
Date:

Friday, 3 December 2021

Time:

10.15 am

You can get
involved in the
following ways
Write a question
You can put your question to the local
committee in writing. The Partnership
Committee Officer must receive it a minimum
of 4 working days in advance of the meeting.
BY 12 NOON ON 26 NOV.
Before submitting your question we would
encourage you to use the report it function on
the SCC website to get a quicker response to
your issue whenever possible.
We will, where possible, endeavour to provide
a written response to your question in
advance of the meeting.
When you arrive at the meeting let the
committee officer (detailed below) know that
you are there for the answer to your question.
The committee chairman will decide exactly
when your answer will be given and may
invite you to ask a further question, if needed,
at an appropriate time in the meeting.

Sign a petition
If you live, work or study in Surrey and have a
local issue of concern, you can petition the
local committee and ask it to consider taking
action on your behalf. Petitions should have at
least 30 signatures and should be submitted
to the Partnership Committee Officer 2 weeks
before the meeting.
DEADLINE 12 NOON ON 18 NOV
You will be asked if you wish to outline your
key concerns to the committee and will be
given 3 minutes to address the meeting. Your
petition may either be discussed at the
meeting or alternatively, at the following
meeting.

Attending the Local Committee meeting
Your Partnership Committee Officer is here to help.
Email: nicola.thorntonbryar@surreycc.gov.uk
Tel: 01483 404788
Website: http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge
This is a meeting in public.

Please contact Nikkie Thornton-Bryar, Partnership Committee Officer using the
above contact details:
•

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another format,
e.g. large print, Braille, or another language.

•

If you would like to attend and you have any additional needs, e.g. access or
hearing loop

•

If you would like to talk about something in today’s meeting or have a local
initiative or concern.

Surrey County Council Appointed Members
Chris Farr
Jeffrey Gray
Cameron McIntosh, Oxted (Chairman)
Becky Rush, Warlingham
Lesley Steeds, Lingfield (Co-Chairman)
Jeremy Webster
Borough Council Appointed Members
District Councillor
District Councillor
District Councillor
District Councillor
District Councillor
District Councillor

Mike Crane
Michael Cooper, Harestone
Chris Langton, Oxted South
Simon Morrow, Warlingham East, Chelsham, Farleigh
Taylor O'Driscoll
Catherine Sayer, Oxted North & Tandridge
Chief Executive
Joanna Killian

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile devices in
silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of the meeting. To
support this, wifi is available for visitors – please ask for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with the
council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending the meeting
can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to no
interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, or any
general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be switched off in
these circumstances. It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities
outlined above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions and
interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

Note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast - at the start of the meeting the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may
be used for training purposes within the Council.
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and using the
public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and
sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of the Community Partnerships
Team at the meeting.

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
Apologies have been received from Cllr Catherine Sayer
2

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting as a correct
record.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter:
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in
respect of any item(s) of business being considered at
this meeting
Notes:

4



Members are reminded that they must not participate in
any item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with
whom the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner)



Members with a significant personal interest may
participate in the discussion and vote on that matter
unless that interest could be reasonably regarded as
prejudicial.

PETITIONS

To receive any petitions in accordance with Standing Order 68.
Notice should be given in writing or by email to the Community
Partnership and Committee Officer at least 14 days before the
meeting. Alternatively, the petition can be submitted on-line
through Surrey County Council’s e-petitions website as long as

(Pages 1 - 8)

the minimum number of signatures (30) has been reached 14
days before the meeting. Deadline 12 noon on 18 Nov.
One petition has been received as follows:PETITION TO SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL TO INSTALL
TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES & A 20 MPH SPEED LIMIT
IN SUNNYBANK, WARLINGHAM
We the undersigned residents of Sunnybank, Warlingham,
request Surrey County Council to install traffic calming measures
in Sunnybank due to the excessive speeds observed in the road
which are a threat to pedestrian safety. These should be
supported by a 20 mile an hour speed limit.
The petition response will be published in a supplementary
agenda.
5

FORMAL PUBLIC QUESTIONS

To answer any questions from residents or businesses within the
Tandridge District area in accordance with Standing Order 69.
Notice should be given in writing or by email to the Community
Partnership and Committee Officer by 12 noon four working
days before the meeting.
DEADLINE 12 NOON ON 26 NOV – the questions and
responses will be published in a supplementary agenda.
6

MEMBERS QUESTIONS

To receive any written questions from Members under Standing
Order 47. Notice should be given in writing to the Community
Partnership and Committee Officer of formal questions by 12.00
noon four working days before the meeting.
The deadline date is 12 noon on 26 Nov and any questions will
be published in a supplementary agenda.
7

TANDRIDGE PARKING REVIEW

(Pages 9 - 74)

Each year Surrey Highways receives requests to change
existing or introduce new parking controls and restrictions in
Tandridge. For greater efficiency, these requests are compiled
and reviewed in a district wide process. Committee approval is
required in order to progress these changes to formal advertising
and statutory consultation, and, where applicable, to
implementation.
8

SMALLFIELD PEDESTRIAN ACCESSIBILITY AND SAFETY
SCHEME

Following road safety incidents outside Burstow School in 2016,
a report was presented to the local committee in September

(Pages 75 108)

2017 describing an investigation and suggestions for highway
improvements to make walking easier and safer. This was
followed up by a meeting with the school, parish council and
local elected members. These proposals formed the basis for a
successful bid to Tandridge District Council for £360,000 CIL
funding in 2020. Outline designs were then published and this
report presents the results of the informal public consultation and
seeks approval from the local committee to proceed with the
scheme following minor amendments to take into account the
feedback received.
9

DECISION TRACKER (FOR INFORMATION)

(Pages 109 112)

To review the decision tracker.
10

FORWARD PLAN

To review the forward plan.

(Pages 113 114)

ITEM 2

Minutes of the meeting of the
Tandridge LOCAL COMMITTEE
held at 10.15 am on 12 February 2021
at Remote meeting.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next
meeting.
Surrey County Council Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*

Mr Cameron McIntosh (Chairman)
Mrs Rose Thorn (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Chris Botten
Mr David Lee
Mrs Becky Rush
Mrs Lesley Steeds
Borough / District Members:

*
*
*

District Councillor Michael Cooper
District Councillor Tony Elias
District Councillor Harry Fitzgerald
District Councillor Chris Langton
District Councillor Simon Morrow
District Councillor Sir Nicholas White

*
*

* In attendance
______________________________________________________________
1/21

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]
Apologies received from District Councillor Chris Langton.

2/21

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING [Item 2]
There was one comment to the minutes of 6 November 2020;
1.

District Councillor Simon Morrow felt that minute 23/20 did not
accurately reflect what he thought was agreed at the meeting. After
some discussion, it was agreed that an additional clarification should
be added to the minute.

Amendment
District Councillor Simon Morrow asked to see a list of Operation Horizon
projects on the agenda. The Chairman advised that whilst his request is
noted, the information is now available to members and residents on the
online interactive map and Members should be encouraged to use this
function. The interactive map provides up to date information and support is
available to Members to access the interactive map should they need
assistance. Cllr Morrow indicated that he would find it helpful to see a simple
written list at the next committee in March. Mrs Becky Rush offered to
discuss with Cllr Morrow outside of the meeting to show him the interactive
map and advise which roads would be on the list in his ward.

Page 1

ITEM 2

It was agreed that with additional clarification on Cllr Simon Morrow comment,
that the minutes from the previous meeting on 6 November 2020 were agreed
as a true record and will be signed by the Chairman.
3/21

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None declared.

4/21

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS [Item 4]
The Chairman, wished to make the following announcements;

5/21

1.

Parking Enforcement – The Chairman was pleased to announce that
Parking Enforcement for on street parking will continue to be carried
out by Sevenoaks District Council for the next two years.

2.

Winter Service - The Chairman would like to thank the Highways
Teams for their regular communication on the gritting schedule over
the winter period and to all who grit the roads especially during this
difficult time.

3.

Claire Coutinho MP- The Chairman has invited Claire Coutinho MP to
meet with the local committee at a future private meeting to discuss
her role on the Local Economic Task Force. Once a date has been
agreed, all members would be informed.

PETITIONS [Item 5]
No petitions received.

6/21

FORMAL PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 6]
No formal public questions received.

7/21

MEMBERS QUESTIONS [Item 7]
No formal Member questions received.

8/21

DECISION TRACKER (FOR INFORMATION) [Item 8]
The Chairman introduced the item explaining that this document monitors the
progress against the decisions that the local committee has made.
Members Key points
1.

Mr David Lee asked for clarification and a question on Burntwood
Lane, Caterham. If the feasibility study identified that there was no
suitable place for a crossing to be installed and ‘slow down’ signs are
to be erected at the location due to speeds. Why have SCC Highways
not commented on a planning application for 14 flats at the same
location on safety grounds for residents exiting the property?

Page 2

ITEM 2

The Area Highways Manager advised that this was a complex
question as there are different safety audits for sight lines for crossing
a road and exiting a property. These are national standards for sight
lines and are dependent on the speeds of the road. The Area
Highways Manager offered to discuss outside the meeting with Mr
David Lee.
2.

Cllr Simon Morrow, requested that the bus stop clearway lines remain
marked as open until they are complete.

Resolution
The Local Committee (Tandridge)
(i) NOTED the contents.
(ii) AGREED to remove the closed items from the tracker, (except for the
bus stop clearways, which would remain for now).
9/21

HIGHWAYS FORWARD PROGRAMME 2021/22 AND 2022/23 [Item 9]
Declarations of Interest: None
Officer attending: Zena Curry, Area Highways Manager
Petitions, Public Questions, Statements: None
The Area Highways Manager introduced the report and explained that
following the Full Council Budget Setting meeting on 9 February 2021, there
has been a substantial increase to the Local Committee’s devolved highways
budget for capital works. For 2021/22 the new budget is £537,000, this
includes £296,000 for capital ITS improvement schemes and £241,000 for
capital maintenance. This funding will remain the same for three consecutive
years. Officers have reviewed the current ITS list and scoring matrix and have
recommended schemes that are both feasible and deliverable within the
timeframe, in Annex 1. The Area Highways Manager welcomed questions
from the Committee.
Members Key Points:
1. David Lee asked if the pedestrian crossing proposed on the A22
Godstone Road, Whyteleafe would be installed or is this for future
consideration?
The Area Highways Manager advised that, subject to committee
approval, this scheme is for design in year 2 and construction in year
3. She explained that in previous years, the local committee had not
had the level of funding required for this type of scheme, however with
additional funding over three years, it was now possible for this
scheme to be designed and constructed. Mr David Lee expressed his
delight and thanked to the Chairman and Officers for the inclusion of
this scheme.

Page 3

ITEM 2

2. Mrs Becky Rush was thrilled that SCC are able to provide additional
funding to Local and Joint Committee’s delegated budgets across
Surrey for highway ITS schemes. It was asked if schemes which had
previously been unsuccessful for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
funding would remain on the ITS ‘wish’ list?
The Area Highways Manager advised that schemes which have
scored highly, but unable to be taken forward due to prioritisation for
the available funding levels, are now able to added to the forward
programme due to additional funding delegated to the committee.
Schemes which have been unsuccessful for CIL will remain on the ITS
wish list and alternative sources of funding will continue to be sought
for all schemes. Subject to committee’s approval of the
recommendations, the Area Highways Manager in consultation with
the Chairman and Vice Chairman are able to vire funding, so should
there be any underspend money on a scheme shown in Annex 1, a
smaller scheme may also be implemented this financial year should
funding allow.
3. Cllr Morrow, asked if the additional funding of £40,000 for Members
Capital Maintenance scheme allocation, would be enough to resurface
an average length side road?
The Area Highways Manager advised that this was a substantial
increase on funding from last year and, depending on the road base,
this funding could cover the cost for resurfacing a road or be used for
pavement resurfacing or a drainage scheme. The Area Highways
Manager offered to circulate a document to Members, showing the
menu of options for highway works and the approximate costs for
works.
Mrs Becky Rush, asked if Cllr Morrow was referring to Farleigh Road
as this is on the Horizon programme for resurfacing as is Church
Road. Should he be referring to a different road then to let her know.
4. Cllr Morrow asked in regards to Annex 1, he was previously assured
that £70,000 would be enough for a formal pedestrian crossing on
Westhall Road, Warlingham. However the other locations for a formal
pedestrian crossing seem to cost considerably more.
The Area Highways Manager advised that £70,000 is the amount
allocated for a zebra crossing, the other schemes require a push
button signalised crossing and therefore have a considerably higher
budget.
5. Cllr Simon Morrow asked if installing a 20mph limit on a road would
need to be funded through the ITS funding?
The Area Highways Manager advised that this would be an ITS type
scheme, however a speed survey would need to be carried out first to
ensure that speeds on the road comply with the SCC Setting Local
Speed Limits Policy. The local committee have an allocation under
the heading of ‘small safety and improvement schemes’ in Annex 1
and this funding could be allocated throughout the year, in consultation
with the Chairman, Vice Chairman and Divisional Member. There is

Page 4

ITEM 2

also additional funding managed by the Road Safety Team who would
be able to allocate funds on Road Safety schemes across the county.
Mrs Becky Rush added that she has been in discussion with Area
Highways Team regarding the 20mph mitigation for Farleigh Road and
this has been added to the list.
6. Cllr Harry Fitzgerald wished to pass on his thanks to Duncan Knox,
Road Safety and Active Travel Team Manager for inviting him to the
consultation for the Road Safety Scheme outside Burstow School. Cllr
Fitzgerald had not been included in the original invite in error, however
was very much looking forward to the event in March.
7. Mrs Lesley Steeds asked if the costings for schemes included a 20%
uplift, as was included in the CIL application for the scheme outside
Burstow School?
The Area Highways Manager advised that the whole cost of the
project shown is the ‘all in’ cost based on the highways contracting
pricing. Should the total cost of the project at final account be less that
originally budgeted for, the remaining money would be allocated to a
smaller ITS scheme in consultation with the Chairman and Vice
Chairman.
8. Mrs Lesley Steeds asked when the schemes would start and could
funding be accrued to the next financial year if work/design had not
taken place where there had been an underspend on another
scheme?
The Area Highways Manager advised that the budgets are for each
financial year, which starts in April. The design work for each scheme
is normally carried out in the middle to the end of each financial year.
Should the committee agree to the recommendations in the report,
dates for construction work for next financial year can be scheduled.
The accounts of the Local Committee are reviewed regularly and
should there be a valid reason as why a scheme could not be
completed in particular financial year, such as a major diversion route,
it could be carried over into the next financial year. However this
would be dependent on the circumstances and would be decided on a
case by case basis.
Resolution
The Local Committee (Tandridge):
General
(i)

NOTED that the Local Committee’s devolved highways budget for
capital works in 2021/22 is £537,000.

(ii)

AGREED that the devolved capital budget for highway works be used
to progress both
capital improvement schemes and capital
maintenance schemes.

Page 5

ITEM 2

(iii)

NOTED that should there be any changes to the programme of
highway works as set out in this report, a report will be taken to a
future meeting of Tandridge Local Committee to inform members of
the changes.

(iv)

AUTHORISED that the Area Highway Manager, in consultation with
the Local Committee Chairman and Vice-Chairman, be able to allocate
any additional funding for schemes, in accordance with any guidance
issued surrounding that funding.

Capital Improvement Schemes
(v)

AGREED that the capital improvement schemes allocation for
Tandridge be used to progress the Integrated Transport Schemes
programme set out in Annex 1.

(vi)

AUTHORISED that the Area Highway Manager, in consultation with
the Local Committee Chairman and Vice-Chairman, be able to vire
money between the schemes agreed in Annex 1, if required.

(vii)

AGREED that the Local Committee Chairman, Vice-Chairman and
Area Highway Team Manager, together with the local divisional
Member are able to progress any scheme from the Integrated
Transport Schemes programme, including consultation and statutory
advertisement that may be required under the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984, for completion of those schemes. Where it is agreed that a
scheme will not be progressed, this will be reported back to the next
formal meeting of the Local Committee for approval.

Capital Maintenance Schemes (LSR)
(viii)

AGREED that the capital maintenance schemes allocation for
Tandridge be divided equitably between County Councillors to carry
out capital maintenance works in their divisions, and that the schemes
to be progressed be agreed by divisional members in consultation with
the Area Maintenance Engineer.

Revenue Maintenance
(ix)

NOTED that the members will continue to receive a Member Local
Highways Fund (revenue) allocation of £7,500 per county member to
address highway issues in their division; and

(x)

AGREED that the Member Local Highways Fund be managed by the
Area Maintenance Engineer on behalf of and in consultation with
members.

Reason for recommendation

Page 6

ITEM 2

The above decisions were made in order to agree a forward programme of
highways works in Tandridge for 2021/22 – 2022/23, funded from the Local
Committee’s devolved budget.
10/21 LOCAL COMMITTEE FORWARD PROGRAMME 2021-22 [Item 10]
Members of the Committee were invited to suggest additional topics for
consideration at future committee meetings.
Cllr Simon Morrow commented that the programme felt very sparse and only
include highway items. It did not include any reports on the library
transformation programme, education or youth services.
The Partnership Committee Officer advised that the local committee are
currently only taking decision items at formal meetings, previously the
committee would have also received items for information. This is a draft plan
and should additional decisions need to be taken, they will be brought to the
Committee.
Resolution
The Local Committee (Tandridge)
(i)

NOTED the forward plan.

Meeting ended at: 10.59am
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 4

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
JOINT COMMITTEE (TANDRIDGE)
DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2021

SUBJECT:

TRAFFIC CALMING IN SUNNYBANKS, WARLINGHAM

DIVISION:

WARLINGHAM

PETITION DETAILS:
A petition has been received asking the County Council to install traffic calming
measures and a 20mph speed limit in Sunnybank, Warlingham.
The petition includes the following details:
We the undersigned residents of Sunnybank, Warlingham, request Surrey County
Council to install traffic calming measures in Sunnybank due to the excessive
speeds observed in the road which are a threat to pedestrian safety. These should
be supported by a 20 mile an hour speed limit.
RESPONSE:
Sunnybank is a residential road that links Farleigh Road at a mini roundabout
junction at its northern end to a mini roundabout junction with Chelsham Road at
its southern end. The road is street lit, with residential properties on both sides and
is subject to a 30mph speed limit.
A traffic calming scheme was installed in Sunnybank in approximately 1995.
Speed cushions were used rather than full width road tables as Sunnybank is on a
bus route, and there are a large number of dropped kerbs for private driveways.
However, in 2010 following resurfacing works, and a trial period during which the
traffic calming measures were not reinstalled, it was decided by the Tandridge
Local Committee not to reinstall the traffic calming measures on Sunnybank.
However, it is appreciated that residents would now like traffic calming measures
to be reinstalled to support a 20mph speed limit. When prioritising requests for
improvements to be carried out on roads throughout the county due to resident’s
concerns about vehicle speeds and road safety, several factors are considered.
The factor that is given the most weight is the collision history of the road. An
assessment has been carried out of the collision history on Sunnybank in
Warlingham, between November 2018 and October 2021 (the latest 3 year data

www.surreycc.gov.uk/woking

Page 9

ITEM 4

for which data is available). During this period there have been no personal injury
collisions on Sunnybank.
Taking account of the collision history, Sunnybank would not prioritise over other
requests for the installation of traffic calming measures to a support a 20mph
speed limit on roads within Tandridge to reduce vehicle speeds.
RECOMMENDATION
The Tandridge Local Committee is asked to note the report.

Contact Officer:

Anne-Marie Hannam, Highways

www.surreycc.gov.uk/woking

Page 10

ITEM 4

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
LOCAL COMMITTEE (TANDRIDGE)
DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2021

SUBJECT:

STAFFORD ROAD

DIVISION:

CATERHAM

PETITION DETAILS:
Stafford Road in Caterham specifically from 224 to 310 is characterised by parking
on both sides of the road with limited passing spaces. This results in a narrow road
and any speeding even when only marginally over the current 30mph speed limit
risks accidents or damage to vehicles as demonstrated by the accident on
Saturday 3rd July 2021 where a number of vehicles were damaged.
Residents request the following
1. Reduction in speed – Limit to 20mph.
2. Appropriate speed mitigation measures to ensure appropriate speed.
i.e. Speed bumps.
3. Review feasibility of a one- way system due to lack of parking spaces.
4. Tandridge council to investigate additional off street parking for the flats
which have been converted from elderly care to general needs housing.
5. Increased police speed monitoring until appropriate mitigation is put in
place.
Residents struggle to report damage to vehicles due to the time on hold to 101 and
no clear action taken. As such we have requested that residents confirm if their car
has been damaged when parked on the road.

RESPONSE:
Stafford Road is a residential road running from Church Hill in the south to
Burntwood Lane in the north. The speed limit on Stafford Road is 30mph.
1 & 2 The petition is requesting that the speed limit is reduced to 20mph and
that appropriate speed mitigation measures eg speed bumps are installed to
ensure appropriate speeds.
Three speed surveys have been carried out in Stafford Road since 2014 and the
results of the surveys are shown in the table below:
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 11

ITEM 4

Survey Date

Survey Location

November 2014

Outside
Stafford
Outside
Stafford
Outside
Stafford

June 2019
August/September
2021

251
Road
251
Road
169
Road

Average Mean
Speed
northbound
(mph)
25

Average Mean
Speed
southbound
(mph)
28

26

27

25

24

Table Showing Results of Speed Surveys on Stafford Road

These results show good compliance with the existing 30mph speed limit.
However, the recorded speeds do not comply with Surrey’s policy for a signs alone
speed limit reduction to 20mph. Therefore, in order to reduce the speed limit to
20mph additional measures such as road tables or speed cushions would be
needed in order to reduce traffic speeds.
Such measures are not always popular with local residents. They can increase
traffic noise and emissions as drivers tend to accelerate between measures.
Large vehicles, in particular empty lorries, can be very noisy when going over road
tables. When such schemes are progressed, consultation is always carried out
with local residents and a scheme is only taken forward if a majority of residents
are in favour.
When prioritising requests for improvements such as the installation of traffic
calming, a number of factors are considered. The factor that is given the most
weight is the personal injury collision history of the road. Surrey County Council
has investigated the personal injury collision history of Stafford Road between
November 2018 and October 2021 (the latest 3 years for which data is available).
During this period there have been three reported collisions on Stafford Road
resulting in personal injury. Two of these collisions occurred near the library and
one involved a vehicle turning into Stafford Road from Burntwood Lane. Although
Surrey County Council has a record of personal injury collisions reported to the
Police, no date is collected on collisions which involve damage to vehicles or
property only. In none of the recorded personal injury collisions did the Police
Officer attending consider that exceeding the speed limit or travelling too fast for
conditions were contributory factors in these collisions. The collision referred to by
the petitioner does not appear on our collision history and may either have been
damage only or was not reported to the Police at the time.
Considering both the collision history and traffic speeds, Stafford Road would not
prioritise over other requests for the installation of traffic calming measures.
3
The petition is requesting that Stafford Road is made one-way due to
the lack of parking spaces.
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 12

ITEM 4

Experience elsewhere is that when roads are made one-way, traffic speeds tend to
increase. This is because drivers do not need to slow down or stop when another
vehicle comes the other way. The petitioners have expressed concern about
traffic speeds on Stafford Road, therefore implementing a one-way system would
not address residents’ concerns and could increase traffic speeds on Stafford
Road. In addition, if a road is made one-way, traffic is displaced onto neighbouring
roads. For these reasons Officers would not recommend that Stafford Road is
made one-way.
4
The petition is requesting Tandridge District Council investigate
additional off-street parking for the flats.
Officers are not able to comment on the provision of off-street parking for the flats,
which is a matter for Tandridge District Council.
5
Increased police speed monitoring until appropriate mitigation is put
in place.
Officers will raise the concerns of the petitioners with Surrey Police, who are
responsible for enforcing the 30mph speed limit on Stafford Road. However, it is
unlikely that Stafford Road would prioritise over other roads in Tandridge for Police
enforcement action as the measured average mean speeds are well within the
30mph speed limit.
It is appreciated that residents continue to be concerned about the speed and
safety of Stafford Road, as well as damage that is being caused to their vehicles.
The requests that have been received by residents within the petition are the
responsibility of a number of different agencies, such as Tandridge District
Council, Surrey Police and Surrey County Council. Therefore a Local
Neighbourhood Engagement meeting will be held with the local residents and the
various different agencies to discuss and agree a way forward.

RECOMMENDATION
The Tandridge Local Committee is asked to note the report and that a Local
Neighbourhood Engagement Meeting will be held.

Contact Officer:

Philippa Gates, Traffic Engineer, Tel: 0300 200 1003

www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 5

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
LOCAL COMMITTEE (TANDRIDGE)
DATE:

3 December 2021

SUBJECT:

Public Questions

DIVISION:

All

Question 1 – Wendy Russell, The Coach House, Tupwood Scrubbs Road
Can I respectfully ask the committee if they consider that an outdated country road speed
limit of 60 mph is appropriate in 2021?
Specifically for this committee I refer to Tupwood Scrubbs Road which leads to Caterham
viewpoint, then on to Gravelly Hill and War Coppice Road. There are many blind bends, it is
a residential area and an AONB with a beauty spot at the viewpoint attracting many walkers,
cyclists and horse riders.
There are several off-road accidents a year and sadly last year a death. Please consider
reducing this speed limit and introduce traffic calming accidents before another fatality
occurs.
Answer from Philippa Gates, Traffic Engineer, 0300 200 1003
Tupwood Scrubbs Road is a single carriageway rural road that runs from Tupwood Lane in
the north to Caterham Viewpoint, where the name of the road changes to Gravelly Hill.
Gravelly Hill runs from Tupwood Scrubbs Road at Caterham Viewpoint in a westerly
direction to the junction of War Coppice Road and Weald Way. There is a right-angle bend
at Caterham Viewpoint where Tupwood Scrubbs Road joins Gravelly Hill.
There is currently a 60mph speed limit on Tupwood Scrubbs Road and Gravelly Hill . It is
not unusual to have a 60mph speed limits on rural roads such as Tupwood Scrubbs Road
and Gravelly Hill, and this is the national speed limit for roads of this nature. We receive
many more requests for speed limit changes than it is possible to deliver in a given year.
These are prioritised and need to comply with our “Setting Local Speed Limits” policy. This
policy sets out the process of how speed limits can be changed.
Part of the prioritisation process is to consider the collision history of the road. An
investigation has been carried out into the collision history of both Tupwood Scrubbs Road
and Gravelly Hill in the three year period between 1 November 2018 and 31 October 2021
(the most recent 3 year period for which data is available). The County Council has a record
of collisions resulting in personal injury that are reported to the Police, but not damage only
collisions. During that period there has been one reported personal injury collision, on
Tupwood Scrubbs Road and Gravelly Hill which occurred on 1 February 2020. This is the
collision referred to in the question, that very sadly resulted in a fatality. It is appreciated that
it is very distressing for those affected when there is a collision that they have either seen or
heard about on a road close to where they live. Officers are not able to comment on the
circumstances of this collision.

Page 15
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

The County Council does take concerns about road safety seriously and road collisions
across the County are continually monitored. This sad accident was referred to the
Tandridge Road Safety Working Group in December 2020 for action to be determined. This
group consists of Road Safety experts from both Surrey Police and the County Council as
well as engineers from Surrey Highways. The minutes of the meeting record that there was
no highway defect and other engineering measures including a change in speed limit were
not recommended at that time.
There are a number of rural roads in Tandridge north of the A25 and west of the A22 that
have a speed limit of 60mph. It is proposed that these roads are grouped together and
added to the Integrated Transport Scheme (ITS) list for future prioritisation for a reduction in
speed limit. This would investigate whether these roads would comply with Surrey County
Council’s Policy “Setting Local Speed Limits” for a signs only speed limit reduction. If some
or all of the roads comply with the policy it will be necessary to make a legal Speed Limit
Order and put up the necessary signs to enable the Police to enforce the new speed limit.
The Local Committees Forward Programme of funded schemes is made up from schemes
on the ITS list. The Forward Programme been agreed for the 2022/23 and 2023/24 financial
years.
There are currently no plans to implement traffic calming measures on Tupwood Scrubbs
Road or Gravelly Hill as is suggested. However, Officers will investigate improving the bend
signing on Tupwood Scrubbs Road and Gravelly Hill during the 2022/23 financial year, and
any work will be subject to available funding.
Question 2 – Cllr Alun Jones, Tandridge DC re Operation Horizon
Background:
In the LAC meeting on 12th Feb 2021, there was a great discussion regarding the
committee having a written forward plan of works to be undertaken as part of the “horizon”
programme as requested by Cllr Morrow. He was advised that all the information was
available online and available for “anyone” to access.
In July of this year, I had a meeting with Zena Currie regarding another highways issue with
several other councillors. Zena was very clear with the meeting the the LAC would be
focusing on decisions to be made, indicating that anything added or removed from the
highways programme would need to be agreed by the LAC
Back in February Tillingdown Hill and Gaist Avenue were on the “horizon” map. This was
where councillors were advised to find information. It was due to be completed in the year
21/22.
Jeffrey Gray met with a Surrey officer in July where multiple issues were discussed, this road
included. In email discussion he requested a date for completion and to review adding in
Waltham Road which is as bad and laid at the same time as Tillingdown Hill and Gaist
Avenue, and to review the sunk pavement between Rodgers Close and Abotts Walk.
In September when reviewing the dates for completion, it appeared that the dates for
completion of this project have moved to 2022 or 2023. The latest update on the website is
it will be completed in 2022. At no point were the Ward Councillors or the Divisional Member
consulted or informed.

Page 16
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

Questions asked together with answers provided by Matthew Gallop, Asset Policy and
Programme Team Leader, SCC Network and Asset Management Group:
Can you confirm when these roads will be completed?
Tillingdown Hill & Gaist Avenue will be prioritised 2023 at the earliest. They have both
provided difficulties in programming due to their construction being concrete and necessity
for additional feasibility in selecting a suitable treatment. Tillingdown Hill is proposed for
concrete restoration, Gaist Avenue will be considered for alternative treatment such as
micro-asphalt following further engagement with our new Highways Management Contractor.
Can you confirm if Waltham Road can be added to the programme?
Waltham Road will be assessed in the next few months for inclusion on the Horizon
programme.
Can the pavement between Rodgers Close and Abbotts Walk be added to the programme?
The pavements in Tillingdown Hill do not currently prioritise for planned maintenance and
inclusion on the Horizon programme. The local member may be able to consider using their
allocation short lengths such as between Rodgers Close & Abbots Walk.
Can you confirm who on this committee approved the change in date?
Maintenance programmes do not require approval from the Local Committee, and none was
sought.
Can you confirm if no elected member approved or was informed of the change, who was
accountable for making this decision?
Highways maintenance programmes are determined and issued including revisions by the
Asset Programme Manager.
Can you confirm in writing the look forward programme for 2022/23 financial year for
Caterham Valley, Whyteleafe and Harestone given the inaccuracy of the online tool?
Programmes will be published for 2022/23 after budgets are approved in the new year.
Unfortunately, we cannot provide written versions of the programmes however it is possible
for users to export selected areas in MS Excel and create their own written versions.
Accuracy should be equal as published programmes both past and present are sourced from
the same database with the web map being updated more frequently.
It was unfortunate that Tillingdown Hill & Gaist Avenue were prematurely displayed on the
2021 programme web map. These schemes were put forward with others for consideration
to include in a trial of an innovative technique of fine milling and acrylic repair. The scope of
work potential had not been defined which has led to their postponement. The way we treat
trial sites, and their publication has been reviewed with additional steps in the process to
ensure this doesn’t happen in the future.
Question 3 – Cllr Jenny Gaffney & Cllr Alun Jones, Tandridge DC re Grit Bins
Background:
Over the summer, I noted two grit bins had been removed from my ward. One outside 355
Stafford Road and the other at the junction of Milner Approach and Stafford Road.
When I queried this with the highways team, I was advised that “All grit bins owned by
Surrey County Council are given a score to determine their value to the network. If a grit bin
falls into a state of disrepair and does not meet a minimum score threshold, we do not
automatically reinstate a new one in its place. In this instance, the bin did not meet the score

Page 17
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

required for renewal, therefore a new one will not be put back.” This was from the “Asset
Policy and Programme Team.”
Following this email I submitted a request for the information around this as I hadn’t seen a
change in policy to grit bins or the impact it would have come through the LAC.
At a meeting in July, Zena Curry suggested I email her with my questions and she would
look into it. Following a number of follow up emails, I am still yet to have a response. My
most recent follow up was 3rd October.
From Cllr Gray, I have been advised that the bin at the bottom of Stafford Road will be
reinstated, but this is yet to happen and we are now in winter.
Questions asked and answers provided by Dan Squibb, Highways
How many grit bins have been removed from Tandridge this year?
In this year’s programme there are 7 bins to be removed in Tandridge. These are all for the
same reason – condition meant the bin has come to end of life and they scored below 100
points.
Asset
ID
1699
1553
1605
6210
1681
1709
6255

Bin Plaque
Number
10545
10538
10728
11797
10597
10590

Road Name
KINGS CROSS LANE
STYCHENS LANE
BANSTEAD ROAD
GUN PIT ROAD
NUNAPPLETON WAY
SHIP HILL
HARESTONE HILL

USRN
39500588
39501011
39500047
39500469
39501311
39500926
39500479

District
Tandridge
Tandridge
Tandridge
Tandridge
Tandridge
Tandridge
Tandridge

Work
Request
Remove
Remove
Remove
Remove
Remove
Remove
Remove

When was the scoring of grit bins introduced?
Scoring was introduced in approximately 2010-11 through a Cabinet approved Task Group
What are the measures that the grit bin is assessed against?
Please see assessment form below

Page 18
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

Highway Grit Bin Assessment Form
Site Name

Location
Coordinates
Assessed by
Date

Requested by
District team area
Characteristic

Severity

Vehicular
Movement
Is site on Priority One
precautionary treatment
route

Yes

Points weighting

Points allocated
Void location rejects
application.

No
Continue
assessment
Yes
25

Is treatment area off priority
one routes on which bin will
be safely located

1:10 or over
Less than 1:10

75
Nil

Surface gradient

Difficult junction requiring
precise timing to exit, or
Within 25m of and falling
towards junction with: -

(Exit traffic at
peak times)
Moderate
Traffic
Light traffic

30
Nil

Yes
No

25
Nil

Bends on slope location
with moderate traffic
Moderate
Traffic
Traffic density at peak times Light traffic
Pedestrian Movement
Concentration of use by
pedestrian’s steps, ramps,
footbridge, subway.
(Category 1 & 2 Footways)
Bin condition damaged yes / no
Locality density

Yes
No

40
Nil

100
Nil

TOTAL POINTS
Retain/Remove

Page 19
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

Who you notified about the decision to remove grit bins this year and which elected member
approved it?
The County Councillor for this location, Caterham Valley Electoral Division, is Mr Jeffrey
Grey. Cllr Grey does not have sufficient capital maintenance funding available for the
replacement of an unprioritised grit bin. However, the Parish Council are able to fund a new
grit bin should they choose to prioritise this from their budgets.
District Councillors are not able to fund replacement grit bins directly, but could in
collaboration with the County Councillor.
When will the grit bin be reinstated at the junction of Stafford Road and Milner Road?
6282, Stafford Road: We had several requests to remove the bin from outside No. 355 over
the last year. The first reason being that it had become damaged around the back, allowing
salt to leak out. The second reason being that the resident of No. 355 was looking to install
vehicle cross over (VCO) and the bin was obstructing the area at this time. When this bin
was initially identified, it was agreed the score was not particularly high, therefore, after
being removed there was no justification for it to be replaced as far as our policy went,
unless the Member wishes to fund one at this location from their budget (although they do
not have funds remaining for this year). This is on a P2 salting route.
1803, Milner Approach: Our inspection data and an enquiry alerted us to the disappearance
of this facility. According to our records, this bin met the required 100 point threshold and we
will be reinstating a new one in its position before the winter season. Our programmes have
gone out to tender and we expect delivery will commence around early to mid-October.
If the Parish wishes to adopt, fund or install their own bins along this road, they are welcome
to do so.
Question 4 – Cllr Annette Evans & Cllr Alun Jones, Tandridge DC re Pavements
Background:
The pavement from Waspes Lodge to Greenhill Avenue along Croydon Road has been
completed in Valley Ward recently. This was not on the look forward programme for 2021
back in February.
The work is described as “Slurry Surfacing”. Following a number of complaints from
residents, I have visited the “work”. The surface is patch leaving the subsurface tarmac
showing. This will result in damage to the new surface following winter ice. There are
several tyre marks and foot prints across it. Underlying surface unevenness has not been
resolved, making the pavement more dangerous as there are now no colour changes where
there is uneven surface. Finally, in places the surface is breaking up.
Questions and answers from Matthew Gallop and Jane Young, Highways:
Who made the decision to add this section of pavement to the 2022 works and who was it
agreed with? Why were local councillors not consulted or informed?
Croydon Road pavements were included by the Asset Programme Manager on the first
revision of the provisional programme issued to Contractors in May 2020. There is no
consultation for maintenance programmes and no approval is required. Provisional
programmes are issued early to supply chain partners for planning & coordination purposes
to reduce delivery risk. The programme is made visible to Councillors & the public at the
same time via the Horizon webmap in Feb / March following budget approvals.

Page 20
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

ITEM 5

What quality checked are carried out on contractors completing these works?
The subcontractor carrying out the works is supervised by our Principal Contractor Kier. The
works are checked for finished quality by our SCC Engineer when the work has been
completed.
What issues had been reported in the last 12 months with regard to the surface in this
section of pavement?
Sorry we have not had time to find this information yet, we will check the street history for
any reported issues.
When will the pavement be revisited to make good the “work” that has been completed?
The work was completed 20/11/21 and will be checked for quality by our SCC Engineer
before any payment is agreed, this should be within the next few weeks. Any work that is
not up to the required standard will need to be redone by the contractor at their own cost.

Page 21
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 7

LOCAL COMMITTEE (TANDRIDGE)

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2021

LEAD OFFICER: RIKKI HILL (PARKING PROJECT & ENFORCEMENT TEAM
LEADER)
SUBJECT:

TANDRIDGE ON STREET PARKING REVIEW 2021/22

DIVISION:

ALL DIVISIONS

SUMMARY OF ISSUE:
Each year Surrey Highways receives requests to change existing or introduce new
parking controls and restrictions in Tandridge. For greater efficiency, these requests
are compiled and reviewed in a district wide process. Committee approval is required
in order to progress these changes to formal advertising and statutory consultation,
and, where applicable, to implementation.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Local Committee (Waverley) is asked to agree that:
(i)
the proposed changes to on-street parking restrictions in Tandridge as
described in annex 1 and shown in the drawings in annex 2 are approved.
(ii)
if necessary, minor adjustments can be made to the proposed changes by
the parking project & enforcement team leader in consultation with the
chairman/vice-chairman and relevant county councillor prior to formal
advertisement and statutory consultation.
(iii)
the intention of the county council to make orders, under the relevant parts of
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, to make the proposed amendments to
the waiting and on street parking restrictions in Tandridge is advertised and
that if no objections are maintained, the orders are made.
(iv)
if there are unresolved objections, they will be dealt with in accordance with
the county council’s scheme of delegation by the parking & traffic
enforcement manager, in consultation with the chairman/vice chairman of this
committee and the appropriate county councillor, after which the orders will
be made.
(v)
the parking team is authorised to carry out a consolidation of the traffic
regulation orders, once these latest amendments have been made, and to
carry out consolidations in future when necessary.
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS:
Changes to the highway network, the built environment and society mean that
parking behaviour changes and consequently it is necessary for a highway authority
to carry out regular reviews of waiting and parking restrictions on the highway
network. It is recommended that the changes to parking controls and restrictions
contained in this report are implemented as they will make a positive impact
towards: Road safety
 Access for emergency vehicles
 Access for refuse vehicles
www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 23

ITEM 7





Easing traffic congestion
Controlling parking
Improving parking amenity

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND:
1.1

Surrey County Council’s parking project team carry out periodic reviews of onstreet restrictions across the county on a rolling programme. These are intended
to keep on top of changes in travel behaviour and the built environment that can
often change on street parking patterns.

1.2

Requests for changes to parking restrictions are made by residents,
councillors, as well as emergency and public service organisations. Over 160
requests had been received since the last parking review in Tandridge, which
were collated and used as the basis for this review.

1.3

Each request is assessed based on several factors, including road safety,
localised congestion, effect on access, especially for larger vehicles, and levels
of support.

2. ANALYSIS:
2.1

The review was carried out in two stages:
Stage one was an initial desktop exercise to eliminate requests for refreshment
of existing restrictions only and requests for restrictions which were either
clearly not practical or feasible or had already taken place.
Stage two involved site visits and assessment of the remaining locations.

2.2

Following stage two of the review, some suggestions and requests were not
taken any further due to there being insufficient evidence to suggest there was
a parking problem which warranted restrictions, or where no feasible or
practical solution was found. The rest were prioritised and those considered
most important have been included to be taken forward.

2.3

The locations where officers consider new or amended restrictions may be of
most benefit (and that require formal advertisement and a statutory
consultation to amend the traffic regulation orders) are listed in Annex 1 and
shown in the drawings in Annex 2. Annex 3 contains a list of roads where
changes to the parking restrictions were requested but were eliminated for
reasons mentioned above or were not a high enough priority to be taken
forward at this time.

2.4

One of the principles that was accepted by the county council when it decided
to take on civil parking enforcement was to keep the necessary traffic
regulation orders (TROs) to a minimum and to consolidate them when several
amendments had been made. The number of amendments made to the
original Tandridge TROs is now in double figures and the time to consolidate
them is probably long overdue. The process is a one notice procedure and
does not invite objections (as it does not result in any changes to the parking
restrictions on the ground) and should be done after the latest amendment
order (for this parking review) has been made. The cost for the notice is
minimal and would be met from the parking team’s budget. As consolidation is
effectively just an administrative process and good housekeeping, it seems
unnecessary for it to need approval of the committee each time, and so it
would be simpler if the committee agreed that in future the parking team

www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 24

ITEM 7

manager could arrange for it to take place as and when it was felt to be
appropriate to do so.
3. OPTIONS:
3.1

The committee approves the proposed changes to parking restrictions and
controls in principle and, following due process, they are introduced for the
reasons mentioned above, and in annex 1.

3.2

The committee does not approve the changes and no further action is taken,
and none of the potential benefits are realised.

3.3

The committee approves some of the changes and only those ones are taken
forward.

4. CONSULTATIONS:
4.1

In most cases consultation and discussion with county councillors has taken
place. Parking restrictions can affect a great number of highway users,
residents and businesses so the recommendations in this report propose that if
necessary, minor changes to the proposals can be made after the meeting,
however no new locations can be added. Any changes need to be agreed by
the parking project team leader, in consultation with the chairman/vice
chairman and relevant county councillor. This will help ensure that the
proposals meet the needs of the community as closely as possible when the
statutory advertisement is made.

4.2

The proposed changes to parking restrictions detailed in the annexes will
require a traffic regulation order to be advertised as part of a statutory
consultation process. When this starts a formal notice will be published in a
local newspaper, advisory notices will be put up in streets where changes are
planned, and post cards will be sent to properties closest to where changes will
take place, as appropriate. The council’s website also plays an important part
allowing residents to view and download plans showing all of the proposals.

4.3

There then follows a 28 day period during which people can submit comments
and objections about the proposals online (via the website) or by letter.

4.4

Objections can relate to the introduction of a new restriction. In cases where
there is a coherent argument for not introducing a proposed restriction, it may
be omitted, and the traffic order can proceed to be made for the other
restrictions without the need to re-advertise.

4.5

If restrictions are to be added to those initially advertised, regulations require
that these new restrictions must be advertised afresh. For this reason, no
additional restrictions can be added through the objection process, but any
suggestions would be considered in the next parking review.

4.6

If there are unresolved objections, they will be considered in accordance with
the county council’s scheme of delegation by the parking team manager, in
consultation with the chairman/vice chairman of this committee and the
appropriate county councillor.

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS:
5.1

The cost of carrying out parking reviews (officer time) is met by the parking
team. For this review, the advertising and implementation costs will also be
funded from the parking team’s revenue budget.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 25

ITEM 7

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS:
6.1

Effective parking restrictions and enforcement can assist accessibility for those
with visual or mobility impairment by reducing instances of obstructive parking.
Parking restrictions can also help blue badge holders have better access to
shops and services

7. LOCALISM:
7.1

Many of the proposals in the report have been put forward by members of the
local community and all will be able to comment and have their say during the
statutory consultation process.

7.2

Communities are represented by county councillors and committee members
who are involved in the decision making process to change or introduce new
parking restrictions.

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Area assessed:
Crime and Disorder

Sustainability (including Climate
Change and Carbon Emissions)
Corporate Parenting/Looked After
Children
Safeguarding responsibilities for
vulnerable children and adults
Public Health

Direct Implications:
There should be fewer instances of
obstructive parking as a
consequence of the restrictions.
No significant implications arising
from this report.
No significant implications arising
from this report.
No significant implications arising
from this report.
No significant implications arising
from this report.

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the waiting restrictions are implemented as detailed in the
annexes as they will make a positive impact towards: Road safety
 Access for emergency vehicles
 Access for refuse vehicles
 Easing traffic congestion
 Controlling parking
 Improving parking amenity
10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT:
10.1 Some additional ‘fine tuning’ of the proposals may be required following the
committee meeting and then our intention to amend the traffic regulation
orders will be advertised and notices about the proposed changes will be
displayed in the local press and on site.
10.2 It is not generally considered a good idea to advertise new parking restrictions
over the Christmas period, when people’s minds are elsewhere and their travel
and parking behaviour changes. The intention is therefore to start the
advertisement process, and the 28 day period when people can comment on
the proposals, as early as possible in the new year.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 26

ITEM 7

10.3 Following the 28 day period, all the comments and objections will be
considered and the final decisions made about what changes to the parking
controls and restrictions should still go ahead.
10.4 The amendments to the traffic regulation orders will then be made and the
appropriate signs and lines installed to allow the restrictions to be enforced. If
all goes according to plan, this should be completed in the spring of 2022.

Contact Officer: Rikki Hill, Parking Project & Enforcement Team Leader
Consulted: See section 4 of the report
Annexes: There are 3 annexes – annex 1 lists the proposals, annex 2 shows plans
of the proposals and annex 3 shows other roads where requests for changes were
made but which are not included in the parking review
Sources/background papers: None

www.surreycc.gov.uk/tandridge

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 7

Annex 1
Tandridge parking review 2021/22:
Statement of reasons
A document explaining our parking proposals and
reasons for introducing them
This document sets out the new parking controls and restrictions that we recommend
should be introduced across the district as part of our Tandridge parking review 2021/22.
The proposals are listed in electoral county division and then by town.

Page 29

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Contents
Caterham Hill division proposals .......................................................................................... 4
Caterham on the Hill ......................................................................................................... 4
Buxton Lane junction with Penrhyn Close ..................................................................... 4
Coulsdon Road.............................................................................................................. 4
Cromwell Road .............................................................................................................. 4
Essendene Road, including junction with Whyteleafe Road.......................................... 4
Foxon Lane junction with Foxon Lane Gardens ............................................................ 4
Money Road junction with Money Avenue..................................................................... 4
Caterham Valley division proposals...................................................................................... 5
Caterham .......................................................................................................................... 5
Colburn Avenue............................................................................................................. 5
Newstead Rise .............................................................................................................. 5
Tupwood Lane (1) ......................................................................................................... 5
Tupwood Lane (2) ......................................................................................................... 5
Tupwood Lane (3) ......................................................................................................... 5
Whyteleafe ........................................................................................................................ 5
Downsway ..................................................................................................................... 5
Godstone Road (1) ........................................................................................................ 5
Godstone Road (2) ........................................................................................................ 5
Hillbury Road ................................................................................................................. 6
Maple Close .................................................................................................................. 6
Salmons Lane................................................................................................................ 6
Godstone division proposals................................................................................................. 7
Godstone .......................................................................................................................... 7
Bakers Mead / Ockleys Mead........................................................................................ 7
Salisbury Road junction with Dewlands......................................................................... 7
Nutfield.............................................................................................................................. 7
A25, in the Nutfield cemetery lay by .............................................................................. 7
South Godstone ................................................................................................................ 7
Lagham Road ................................................................................................................ 7
Lingfield division proposals................................................................................................... 8
Dormansland..................................................................................................................... 8
New Farthingdale .......................................................................................................... 8
Lingfield............................................................................................................................. 8
Little Lullenden junction with Grove Road ..................................................................... 8
Newchapel Road ........................................................................................................... 8
Page 30

2

Annex 1 - Tandridge parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons

December
ITEM 7 2021

Vicarage Road junction with Vicarage Close ................................................................. 8
Smallfield .......................................................................................................................... 8
Meadow View, junctions with Mead Lane and Plough Road ......................................... 8
Oxted division proposals....................................................................................................... 9
Hurst Green ...................................................................................................................... 9
Holland Road (1) ........................................................................................................... 9
Holland Road (2) ........................................................................................................... 9
Hurstlands ..................................................................................................................... 9
The Greenway ............................................................................................................... 9
Wolfs Wood ................................................................................................................... 9
Limpsfield.......................................................................................................................... 9
Bluehouse Lane (1) ....................................................................................................... 9
Bluehouse Lane (2) ....................................................................................................... 9
High Street (1) ............................................................................................................... 9
High Street (2) ............................................................................................................... 9
Old Oxted........................................................................................................................ 10
High Street (1) ............................................................................................................. 10
High Street (2) ............................................................................................................. 10
Oxted .............................................................................................................................. 10
Station Road East........................................................................................................ 10
Station Road West....................................................................................................... 10
Gresham Road junction with Station Road East.......................................................... 10
Warlingham division proposals ........................................................................................... 11
Tatsfield .......................................................................................................................... 11
Church Hill................................................................................................................... 11
Paynesfield Road ........................................................................................................ 11
Westmore Road........................................................................................................... 11
Paynesfield Road junction with Johns Road................................................................ 11
Warlingham..................................................................................................................... 11
Farleigh Road junction with The Copse....................................................................... 11
Kingswood Lane .......................................................................................................... 11
Limpsfield Road (1) ..................................................................................................... 11
Limpsfield Road (2) ..................................................................................................... 12
Tithepit Shaw Lane...................................................................................................... 12
Westhall Road ............................................................................................................. 12

Page 31

3

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Caterham Hill division proposals
Caterham on the Hill
Buxton Lane junction with Penrhyn Close
Introduce double yellow lines at the junction of Buxton Lane and Penrhyn Close, in order to
maintain sightlines for drivers leaving the Close and so improve road safety. This proposal
is shown in drawing 1.

Coulsdon Road
Extend the double yellow lines to the north of the junction with St Michaels Road by
approximately 4.5 metres, in order to increase the length of sightlines for drivers leaving the
St Michaels Road and so improve road safety. This proposal is shown in drawing 2.

Cromwell Road
Extend the double yellow lines on the western side at the junction with Banstead Road up
to the start of the dropped kerb giving access to the garages behind numbers 253a to 253d
Coulsdon Road, in order to improve road safety and safe passage for pedestrians. This
proposal is shown in drawing 3.

Essendene Road, including junction with Whyteleafe Road
Introduce double yellow lines in Essendene Road on both sides of the bend outside
numbers 54 and 56, and on both sides of the junction with Whyteleafe Road, in order to
improve sightlines for drivers and road safety at both locations. This proposal is shown in
drawing 4.

Foxon Lane junction with Foxon Lane Gardens
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the junction in order to maintain sightlines for
drivers leaving the Gardens and improve road safety. This proposal is shown in drawing 5.

Money Road junction with Money Avenue
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the junction in order to improve access to the
Avenue and maintain sightlines for drivers entering and leaving the Avenue and so improve
road safety. This proposal is shown in drawing 6.

Page 32

4

Annex 1 - Tandridge parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons

December
ITEM 7 2021

Caterham Valley division proposals
Caterham
Colburn Avenue
Introduce double yellow lines along the whole of the eastern side of the road to prevent
parking on that side which can obstruct traffic flow. This proposal is shown in drawings 7
and 8.

Newstead Rise
Extend the double yellows from the junction with Markfield Road on both sides round the
bend up to in line with the northern boundary of number 9 to improve safety on the bend by
allowing two-way traffic. This proposal is shown in drawings 9.

Tupwood Lane (1)
Extend the double yellow lines from the junction with The Copse southwards to the
beginning of the dropped kerb of number 80 to prevent obstructive parking and improve
access. This proposal is shown in drawing 11.

Tupwood Lane (2)
Introduce double yellow lines to the south of the entrance to Croudace House as far as the
northern boundary of 6 Tupwood Lane to replace the unenforceable length of single yellow
line and improve sightlines. This proposal is shown in drawing 12.

Tupwood Lane (3)
Introduce double yellow lines to the north of the entrance to Croudace House in order to
update the traffic order to match what is already on the ground. (This is just a change to the
traffic regulation order and will not result in any change to the existing road markings). This
proposal is shown in drawing 12.

Whyteleafe
Downsway
Introduce a resident permit parking scheme in Downsway to improve parking amenity for
residents and double yellow lines on the western side at the entrance to the road to ensure
parking only takes place on one side. This proposal is shown in drawings 41 and 42.

Godstone Road (1)
Change the single yellow line to double yellow lines on the western side from number 118
to the pedestrian crossing markings outside number 78 to discourage parking on this
section of road for drivers of vehicles visiting the Tesco Express and to improve sightlines
on the bend. This proposal is shown in drawing 42.

Godstone Road (2)
Remove the double yellow lines from in front of numbers 418 and 420 to improve parking
amenity for residents. This proposal is shown in drawing 43.

Page 33

5

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Hillbury Road
Extend the double yellow lines on the north side from outside number 4 Roundburrow Close
up to the entrance to the entrance to the recreation ground car park to improve sightlines on
the bend and traffic flow. This proposal is shown in drawing 44.

Maple Close
Extend the double yellow lines on the eastern side from the junction with Maple Road up to
the entrance to the parking area serving numbers 1 to 9 to prevent obstructive parking. This
proposal is shown in drawing 42.

Salmons Lane
Replace the single yellow line with double yellow lines on both sides of the road from the
level crossing to the junction with The Avenue to prevent obstructive parking and maintain
traffic flow near the railway crossing. This proposal is shown in drawing 45.

Page 34

6

Annex 1 - Tandridge parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons

December
ITEM 7 2021

Godstone division proposals
Godstone
Bakers Mead / Ockleys Mead
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides from the junction with Bletchingley Road to just
past the entrance to numbers 3 and 3A to prevent obstructive parking and maintain traffic
flow, and opposite the driveways of numbers 6 and 7 to provide a passing place. This
proposal is shown in drawing 14.

Salisbury Road junction with Dewlands
Introduce double yellow lines on all sides of the junction to maintain sightlines for drivers.
This proposal is shown in drawing 15.

Nutfield
A25, in the Nutfield cemetery lay by
Introduce a restriction on waiting at any time for vehicles over 5 tonnes to prevent
obstructive parking and damage to the kerbs by heavy goods vehicles. This proposal is
shown in drawing 26.

South Godstone
Lagham Road
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides outside and opposite numbers 27 to 37 to
improve access for larger vehicles. This proposal is shown in drawing 32.

Page 35

7

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Lingfield division proposals
Dormansland
New Farthingdale
Introduce double yellow lines in the turning head next to the entrance to the grasscrete area
to prevent obstructive parking and improve access. This proposal is shown in drawing 13.

Lingfield
Little Lullenden junction with Grove Road
Introduce double yellow lines on and opposite the junction to improve access, especially for
larger vehicles. This proposal is shown in drawing 23.

Newchapel Road
Introduce double yellow lines on south side of Newchapel Road from the end of the lay by
outside Ormuz cottages past the entrance to Lincolns Mead up to the start of the dropped
kerb of Fieldings and extend the ones on the north side up to the entrance to the driveway
alongside Arch Trees, in order to prevent obstructive parking. This proposal is shown in
drawing 24.

Vicarage Road junction with Vicarage Close
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the junction to improve sightlines for drivers
exiting the Close. This proposal is shown in drawing 25.

Smallfield
Meadow View, junctions with Mead Lane and Plough Road
Introduce double yellow lines on the junction of Meadow View and Mead Lane to maintain
sightlines for drivers exiting Mead Lane, and on the junction of Meadow View and Plough
Lane to improve sightlines and traffic flow and prevent obstructive parking. This proposal is
shown in drawing 31.

Page 36

8

Annex 1 - Tandridge parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons

December
ITEM 7 2021

Oxted division proposals
Hurst Green
Holland Road (1)
Extend the double yellow lines at the junction with Roseacre approximately 20 metres to the
north to maintain sightlines for drivers leaving Roseacre and improve road safety. This
proposal is shown in drawing 16.

Holland Road (2)
Extend the double yellow lines outside number 154 to just past the driveway of number 160
to prevent obstructive parking and improve access. This proposal is shown in drawing 16.

Hurstlands
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the road from the entrance to Greenhurst
Lane to just past, and into, the entrance to Wolfs Wood to prevent parking near the traffic
calming feature and on the junction with Wolfs Wood. This proposal is shown in drawing 17.

The Greenway
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the bend outside numbers 24 to 28d on the
south-western side and opposite numbers 20 to 28d on the north-eastern side to improve
sightlines for drivers and safety by allowing two-way traffic. This proposal is shown in
drawing 18.

Wolfs Wood
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the junction opposite numbers 48 and 50 to
improve traffic flow and access, especially for larger vehicles. This proposal is shown in
drawing 19.

Limpsfield
Bluehouse Lane (1)
Extend the single yellow line outside number 55 to just past the entrance to number 59 to
improve sightlines and road safety. This proposal is shown in drawing 20.

Bluehouse Lane (2)
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides from the junction with the High Street and
Titsey Road to the layby outside numbers 190 and 192 to help prevent obstructive parking
and maintain traffic flow. This proposal is shown in drawing 21.

High Street (1)
Extend the double yellow lines on the eastern side from outside The Manor House to
approximately 30 metres past the steps up to the church to prevent obstructive parking and
maintain traffic flow. This proposal is shown in drawing 21.

High Street (2)
Extend the double yellow lines on the western side so they go across the full width opposite
the entrance to Stanhopes to improve road safety for drivers using the junction. This
proposal is shown in drawing 22.
Page 37

9

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Old Oxted
High Street (1)
Remove the single yellow line from the no longer used bus stop in the lay by in front of the
flats, 28-50 High Street to free up extra parking space. This proposal is shown in drawing
27.

High Street (2)
Extend the double yellow lines that currently stop in line with the eastern boundary of 2A
westwards by approximately 3 metres so that they cover the dropped kerb and improve
pedestrian access to the underpass. This proposal is shown in drawing 27.

Oxted
Downs Way, junctions with Greenacres
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the road and opposite both of the junctions
with Greenacres, including both sides of the bend between the junctions and extending on
the eastern side to the turning space outside the school entrance to improve sightlines and
prevent obstructive parking. This proposal is shown in drawing 28.

Station Road East
Remove the parking bay alongside 129 to 131 (Lorimers) and replace with double yellow
lines, so the taxi rank can be relocated there from its current position in the middle of the
road, which is a safer and more suitable place for it (subject to agreement with Tandridge
District Council’s licensing team). This proposal is shown in drawing 29.

Station Road West
Extend the double yellow lines and shorten the parking bay outside The Hoskins (opposite
12 to 14 Station Road East) in order to update the traffic order to match what is already on
the ground. (This is just a change to the traffic regulation order and will not result in any
change to the existing road markings). This proposal is shown in drawing 29.

Gresham Road junction with Station Road East
Change the single yellow line to double yellow lines on both corners at the junction and into
Gresham Road to help keep the junction clear and improve traffic flow and road safety. This
proposal is shown in drawing 30.

Page 38

10

Annex 1 - Tandridge parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons

December
ITEM 7 2021

Warlingham division proposals
Tatsfield
Church Hill
Remove the two School Keep Clear markings in order to update the traffic order to match
what is already on the ground. (This is just a change to the traffic regulation order as the
markings are no longer on the ground, having not been replaced when the road was
resurfaced, because they were no longer needed as the school has closed). There is no
drawing for this proposal.

Paynesfield Road
Introduce double yellow lines on the inside of the bend opposite the entrance to Shipfield
Close to improve sightlines for drivers and road safety by allowing two way traffic round the
bend. This proposal is shown in drawing 33.

Westmore Road
Reduce the length of the double yellow lines to the south of the junction with Grove Road
by approximately 4 metres to free up parking space. This proposal is shown in drawing 33.

Paynesfield Road junction with Johns Road
Introduce double yellow lines on the southern side of the junction to improve sightlines for
drivers exiting Johns Road and road safety, and remove a short section of the double
yellow lines in Johns road on the north side of the junction in order to update the traffic
order to match what is already on the ground. (This second part is just a change to the
traffic regulation order and will not result in any change to the existing road markings).
These proposals are shown in drawing 34.

Warlingham
Farleigh Road junction with The Copse
Replace the single yellow line with double yellow lines across the entrance to The Copse to
keep sightlines clear for drivers exiting The Copse. This proposal is shown in drawing 35.

Farleigh Road, including junctions with Boxwood Way and Bond Road
Introduce double yellow lines on the southern side from outside the Village Hall up to
number 50 and shorter lengths on the northern side, including all the way from the
Boxwood Way junction up to number 51 on the northern side to improve traffic flow and
prevent obstructive parking. This proposal is shown in drawing 36.

Kingswood Lane
Introduce double yellow lines on both sides of the road from the junction with Oakenshaw
Close to number 31, outside numbers 37 and 41 and outside numbers 57 and 59 to
improve sightlines for drivers and road safety. This proposal is shown in drawing 37.

Limpsfield Road (1)
Remove the double yellow lines next to the paved former verge area in front of numbers
159-165 so it can still be used for parking. This proposal is shown in drawing 38.

Page 39

11

AnnexITEM
1 - Tandridge
parking review 2021/22: Statement of reasons
7

December 2021

Limpsfield Road (2)
Introduce double yellow lines outside numbers 178 to 214 to prevent obstructive parking
and improve access. This proposal is shown in drawing 38.

Tithepit Shaw Lane
Introduce double yellow lines opposite Warlingham school from the southern end of the
pedestrian crossing area southwards to in line with the southern building line of the sixth
form centre, in order to improve traffic flow. This proposal is shown in drawing 39.

Westhall Road
Extend the double yellow lines to the south of the junction with Coneybury Close to the start
of the dropped kerb access to numbers 90 to 94, to keep the bus stop clear. This proposal
is shown in drawing 40.

Page 40

12

Page 41

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 42

Page 43

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 44

Page 45

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 46

Page 47

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 48

Page 49

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 50

Page 51

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 52

Page 53

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 54

Page 55

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 56

Page 57

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 58

Page 59

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 60

Page 61

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 62

Page 63

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 64

Page 65

ITEM 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 67

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 68

Page 69

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 70

Page 71

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 72

Page 73

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 74

Page 75

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 76

Page 77

ITEM 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 79

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 80

Page 81

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 82

Page 83

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 84

Page 85

ITEM 7

ITEM 7

Page 86

ITEM 7

Tandridge parking review 2021/22 – Annex 3
In the list below are roads where we received one or more requests for changes to
the parking restrictions that were assessed and considered not a high enough
priority to be taken forward at this time. There are locations where different requests
were made for the same road, and consequently some roads will feature both in this
list and in Annex 1. While every effort has been made to ensure this list is as
accurate as possible, there may have been locations that do not appear in this list
due to the fact that it was considered along with a nearby road during the
assessment.
Bletchingley – Coneybury.
Caterham on the Hill - Addison Close, Addison Road, Cromwell Grove, Eldon
Road, Fairbourne Lane, Fairbourne Lane, Grenadier Place, Milton Road, Campbell
Road, Ninehams Road, Poplar Walk, Stanstead Road, Town End, Town End Close,
Westway.
Caterham – Asprey Grove, Beechwood Road, Croydon Road, Eothen Close,
Farningham Road, Mount Pleasant Road, Stafford Road.
Dormansland - Beacon Hill.
Felbridge - Crawley Down Road, Rowplatt Lane.
Godstone –Bakers Mead, High Street, Lindley Road, Salisbury Road.
Hurst Green – Holland Road, Mill Lane.
Limpsfield - Bluehouse Lane, Hookwood Park, Water Lane.
Limpsfield Chart - Tally Road.
Lingfield – Bakers Lane, Crowhurst Road, Station Road, Vicarage Road.
Oxted - Bluehouse Lane, Central Way, Chichele Road, Church Lane, Gresham
Road, Silkham Road, Springfield, Uvedale Road.
Smallfield – Park Road.
South Nutfield - North Station Approach.
Tatsfield – Crossways, Paynesfield Road, Westmore Road.
Warlingham - Hamsey Green Gardens, Limpsfield Road, Shelton Avenue, Tithepit
Shaw Lane, Westhall Road, Westview Road.
Whyteleafe – Aspen Vale, Church Road, Godstone Road, Well Farm Road,
Welcomes Terrace, Wellesley Parade.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 8

LOCAL COMMITTEE (TANDRIDGE)

DATE:

3 DECEMBER 2021

LEAD OFFICER: Duncan Knox, Road Safety & Sustainable School Travel
Team Manager
SUBJECT:

Smallfield Pedestrian Accessibility and Safety Scheme

DIVISION:

LINGFIELD

SUMMARY OF ISSUE:
Following road safety incidents outside Burstow School in 2016, a report was
presented to the local committee in September 2017 describing an investigation and
suggestions for highway improvements to make walking easier and safer. This was
followed up by a meeting with the school, parish council and local elected members
to refine proposals in the immediate vicinity of the school and the centre of
Smallfield. These proposals formed the basis for a successful bid to Tandridge
District Council for £360,000 CIL funding in 2020. Outline designs were then
published online and advertised to residents and businesses to invite their comment
in March 2021. This report presents the results of this informal public consultation
and seeks approval from the local committee to proceed with the scheme following
minor amendments to take into account the feedback received. Proceeding will be
subject to the successful conclusion of the lease of part of a playing field belonging
to Burstow School to Burstow Parish Council to create an off-street parking facility
upon which the highway scheme depends.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Local Committee (Tandridge) is asked to agree that
(i)

The scheme proposals as presented within Appendix A should proceed to
detailed design and implementation incorporating some minor changes resulting
from the public consultation described in section 2.

(ii) Proceeding with the scheme will be subject to the successful conclusion of the
lease of part of a Burstow School playing field to the parish council to create an
off-street parking facility upon which the highway scheme will depend.
(iii) Authorise the advertisement of the relevant notices in accordance with the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the effect of which will be to implement the
proposed traffic restrictions, traffic calming and formal crossings, and subject to
no objections being upheld, that the orders be made.
(iv) Authorise delegation of authority to the Highway Engagement & Commissioning
Manager in consultation with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman of the Local
Committee and the relevant local divisional member to resolve any objections
received in connection with the proposals

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 89

ITEM 8

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS:
The proposed highway measures would help to reduce risk of collisions and improve
the highway infrastructure to encourage more walking, cycling and push scooting to
school and to the shops and services in the centre of Smallfield. The proposals
would also help reduce congestion and driver frustration on Wheelers Lane and
Redehall Road in the centre of Smallfield.
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND:
1.1

One of the most frequently expressed road safety concerns is that of the safety
of children outside schools. At school drop off and pick up times the roads in
the immediate vicinity of schools are especially busy and there is usually a
higher level of vehicle, pedestrian, scooter and cyclist activity. This causes
slower vehicle speeds and congestion and very often leads to frustration from
residents and motorists at the apparent chaos caused by parents and children
arriving or leaving the school.

1.2

A petition was submitted to the Tandridge Local Committee on 9 December
2016 requesting an improvement to road safety on Wheelers Lane and
Redehall Road, following a collision at the junction. After that petition was
submitted, there was another collision in May 2017 involving a child pedestrian
outside Burstow Primary School. This renewed community concerns regarding
road safety of the children attending Burstow Primary School. A report was
presented to the Tandridge Local Committee on 22 September 2017 which
made recommendations for highway improvements. The improvements were
developed following site visits and in consultation between road safety,
highways, police and school colleagues. The report can be viewed via the
following link:
Surrey County Council - Agenda for Tandridge Local Committee on Friday,
22 September 2017, 10.15 am (surreycc.gov.uk) (item 133)

1.3

The Local Committee agreed to the proposals in principle and agreed that in
the absence of sufficient funding being available to the Local Committee, that
external funding should be sought, (for example via a bid to Tandridge District
Council for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding). Consequently, a CIL
bid was submitted in 2017, but did not meet the criteria that was set at that time
because non-strategic highway improvements were not eligible.

1.4

A further petition was submitted to the Tandridge Local Committee on 21 June
2019 due to ongoing concerns over road safety and congestion on Wheelers
Lane, Redehall Road and at the staggered crossroads junction with Plough
Lane. The petition requested that Wheelers Lane be made one way. The
petition and the response can be viewed via the following link:
Surrey County Council - Agenda for Tandridge Local Committee on Friday,
21 June 2019, 10.15 am (surreycc.gov.uk) (item 14)

1.5

The suggestion to make Wheelers Lane one way was rejected by officers, so
the Local Committee agreed that “Officers meet with the Parish Council, Local
Councillors and the school to discuss options to move this matter forward and
find a solution”. Therefore, a meeting was held with Burstow Parish Council,
Burstow School and the local Tandridge District and Surrey County Councillors
on 10 October 2019. This resulted in further refinements to the proposals first
approved by the Tandridge Local Committee on 22 September 2017.
www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 90

ITEM 8

1.6

The scheme then formed the basis for a successful bid to Tandridge District
Council for CIL funding in January 2020, which allowed for outline design to
progress, and to then be published online and advertised to residents and local
businesses to invite their comment in March 2021.

1.7

The scheme is being proposed alongside and is complementary to a scheme
being promoted by Burstow Parish Council and Burstow School to convert part
of a school playing field to the south of the parade of shops into a carpark. It is
intended that this be used by staff and parents as a park and stride site, and
by visitors to the shops and local services, and so will reduce the amount and
impact of on-street parking and traffic in the immediate vicinity of the school
and shops. This project is awaiting final approval from central government from
the Department for Education, which is expected within the next few weeks.

1.8

In summary the scheme has been developed in response to collisions taking
place, concerns expressed by the local community in the form of petitions and
has been developed in partnership with local County and District councillors,
police, school and parish council. This report provides an analysis of the
feedback from the informal public consultation and seeks approval from the
local committee to proceed with the scheme (subject to some minor
amendments to take into account the feedback received). Proceeding with the
scheme will also be dependent upon the successful approval from the
Department for Education to create an off-street parking facility on part of a
school playing field upon which the highway scheme depends.

2. ANALYSIS:
Description of Scheme
2.1

The proposals (shown in Annex A) include the installation of new and improved
pedestrian crossing facilities on both Wheelers Lane and Redehall Road, the
widening of footways to improve accessibility for pedestrians on Wheelers
Lane, and the introduction of a no entry restriction at the junction between
Redehall Road and Wheelers Lane. These are described in more detail below.

Zebra crossing and removal of on-street parking on Redehall Road
2.2

A new pedestrian crossing facility is proposed on Redehall Road in the vicinity
of the parade of local shops and services. Several locations and types of
pedestrian crossing facilities, including options for traffic signalised facilities,
have been carefully considered. A zebra crossing is being proposed as the
most appropriate facility following a detailed assessment of the existing site
constraints and highway layout in the location identified in the plan.

2.3

The existing parking bays located on the northbound side of Redehall Road
will be removed to allow for the installation of the proposed zebra crossing
facility. Visitors to the parade of local shops and services, as well as staff and
parents associated with Burstow Primary School, will be able to use the new
'Park and Stride' car park to be constructed within the playing fields south of
the parade of shops along Redehall Road instead.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 91

ITEM 8

No entry restriction into Wheelers Lane at the junction with Redehall Road
2.4

It is proposed to introduce a new no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane at the
junction with Redehall Road in conjunction with footway widening and junction
layout re-alignment measures to improve accessibility improved pedestrian
crossing facilities. Wheelers Lane will remain as a two-way road with vehicles
being able to exit Wheelers Lane onto Redehall Road, but not turn into
Wheelers Lane from Redehall Road.

2.5

The introduction of the no-entry restriction will mean vehicular access to get to
residential properties, local services and Burstow Primary School on Wheelers
Lane will be via Redehall Road, Weatherhill Road and Broadbridge Lane.
Whilst these proposed alternative access arrangements are acknowledged as
being occasionally more inconvenient for some who may have to drive a longer
way around from time to time to get to their properties by motor vehicle, the
resulting reduced traffic volumes anticipated on Wheeler’s Lane will create a
safer environment for all users in the vicinity of Burstow Primary School.
Cyclists will be exempt from the proposed no entry restriction, as will
emergency service vehicles and equestrians.

2.6

At the Wheelers Lane junction with Redehall Road, alterations to the junction
geometry are proposed to provide increased footway widths and improved
facilities for pedestrians.

Wider footways and improved pedestrian crossing point on Wheelers Lane
2.7

The footways on both the northern and southern sides of Wheelers Lane are
proposed to be widened to improve accessibility for all users in the vicinity of
Burstow Primary School and other local services such as Smallfield Surgery
and the Centenary Hall.

2.8

The existing priority give-way and associated kerb buildouts are proposed to
be removed, and to be replaced with improved pedestrian crossing facilities on
top of a new full width raised table. A loading bay is proposed to be provided
on the southern side of Wheelers Lane near to the junction with Redehall Road
to facilitate deliveries to the nearby local shops.

2.9

The pedestrian and vehicular entrances to Burstow Primary school are
proposed to be improved to provide greater accessibility for users accessing
the school and other nearby services. Within the proposed widened section of
footway between the school and Smallfield Surgery, a new “rain garden”
sustainable drainage system is proposed to alleviate flooding that has
previously taken place at this location.

Informal public consultation method and advertising
2.10 The scheme proposals (shown in Annex A) were published via the county
council’s online consultation portal between 8 and 21 March 2021. Officers
also held a live online consultation session on Monday 15 March 2021 from
6pm until 7pm that was broadcast on the Tandridge Local Committee
Facebook page. This allowed viewers to type questions to the panel of officers
developing the scheme.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 92

ITEM 8

2.11 The online consultation was advertised by a leaflet drop to the properties most
directly affected and closest to the proposals shown in the map below.

2.12 Posters were erected at six locations in and around the centre of Smallfield on
the 4 March until the end of the consultation period to let people know about
the consultation. The details were also shared with Burstow School, Burstow
Parish Council and local councillors in case they were able to highlight the
consultation via their communication channels too.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 93

ITEM 8

Informal Public Consultation Results
2.13 The online consultation webpage asked respondents as to whether they
supported each of the three main elements to the scheme described above
and invited them to provide additional comments. The results are summarised
in Tables 1 to 3 below. There were 70 respondents, all of whom had a RH9 6 x
x postcode (so all lived locally to Smallfield). A summary of the main issues
raised in the free text comments is provided below, and a full listing of all
comments is provided in Annex B.
Table 1: Q1 How would you classify your feedback regarding the proposed
zebra crossing and removal of on-street parking on Redehall Road?
Number of respondents
Percentage
Fully support
48
69
Partially support
13
19
Don’t support
8
11
Blank/Other
1
1
Total
70
100
2.14 It can be seen from Table 1 that most respondents (69%) were in favour of the
proposals for a zebra crossing and removal of on-street parking on Redehall
Road. Some of the main issues that were raised are paraphrased below along
with a response from officers:
2.15 Issue: Illegal parking will still take place and should be enforced by camera.
Response: White zig zag lines are required to be implemented on the
approaches to zebra crossings upon which it is illegal to stop and park. This is
a more serious offence than parking illegally on yellow lines and is enforceable
by the police and will incur 3 penalty points on the driving licence.
2.16 Issue: The footways are too narrow on Redehall Road.
Response: The Parish Council have agreed that the pedestrian entrance to
the proposed car park be set back further from the kerb to maximise footway
space at that point. The proposed zebra crossing has been positioned where
the footway is widest to provide the most amount of space for pedestrians
waiting to cross the road. However, there isn’t room to widen these footways.
2.17 Issue: The position of crossing is incorrect and should be closer to the junction
with Plough Lane where the school crossing patrol used to operate.
Response: Zebra crossings cannot be positioned too close to junctions in
case turning traffic is unable to see pedestrians waiting to cross. The proposed
location is where the footway is widest on the western side as there is
insufficient footway width available immediately outside the post office.
2.18 Issue: The removal of the on-street parking will increase speeds.
Response: It is acknowledged that the existing on-street parking helps to
reduce vehicle speeds (when there are vehicles parked there, which is
frequently the case). There is traffic calming in the form of a raised table hump
about 45m south of the proposed zebra crossing, and the junction with
Wheelers Lane and Plough Road is on a raised table too. It is acknowledged
that the ramp on the south arm of the raised junction table is not very steep, so
www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 94

ITEM 8

consideration will be given to resurfacing and reprofiling the ramp to encourage
slower speeds as part of the scheme.
Table 2: Q2 How would you classify your feedback regarding the proposed no
entry restriction into Wheelers Lane at the junction with Redehall Road?
Number of respondents
Percentage
Fully support
31
44
Partially support
13
19
Don’t support
23
33
Blank/Other
3
4
Total
70
100
2.19 It can be seen from Table 2 that there was a greater number of respondents
who “fully support” the proposals for a no-entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
(44%), compared to those who “don’t support” (33%). A further 19% “partially
support” the proposals. Some of the main issues that were raised are
paraphrased below along with a response from officers:
2.20 Issue: What about the impact of more vehicles on Broadbridge Lane?
Response: The no-entry into Wheelers Lane will reduce the number of
westbound vehicles on Wheelers Lane who would have otherwise continued
via Broadbridge Lane. Some people may choose to drive to park at the
medical centre and parish hall via Broadbridge Lane, but it is expected that
many from the eastern side of the village may find it more convenient and
quicker to walk or “park and stride” from the new car park off Redehall Road,
rather than to drive the much longer way around via Broadbridge Lane.
2.21 Issue: The whole road should be one way and/or the no entry should be at the
other end, or the road should be fully closed.
Response: Making the whole length of Wheelers Lane one way would be
likely to increase vehicle speeds because traffic would be able to proceed
without being constrained by the possibility of vehicles travelling in the
opposite direction. It would also increase the inconvenience to residents of
Wheelers Lane when driving away from their properties, as they will only be
able to travel in one direction. Instead with the proposals presented in this
report residents could still head in either direction when leaving their property.
By not allowing vehicles to enter the eastern end of Wheelers Lane (as
proposed) there will be no left turn and right turns into Wheelers Lane which
will help to reduce the complexity and congestion at this busy junction. This
would be preferable to having the “no-entry” at the western end of Wheelers
Lane because this would result in all the existing turning movements at the
junction with Redehall Road being retained, and would make this already
congested junction even busier.
Having the “no-entry” at the eastern end (as proposed) will also encourage
more people from the eastern side of the village to walk or “park and stride”
from new car park off Redehall Road to the facilities on Wheelers Lane as this
will be more convenient and quicker compared to driving the long way around
via Broadbridge Lane.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 95

ITEM 8

It would not be possible to fully close the road, as there would be no space for
a turning head for vehicles to use to turn around when reaching the closure
point.
2.22 Issue: Horse riders regularly use Wheelers Lane but the “no entry” proposal
would prevent this?
Response: Equestrians are not classed as a motor vehicle and would
therefore be exempt from the “no-entry”. They could therefore continue to
proceed with caution into Wheelers Lane from Redehall Road, utilising the
contraflow cycle lane, without breaking the law. The expected reduction in
traffic on Wheelers Lane will make horse riding easier and safer. It will be
possible to sign “no-entry, except for cycles”, but unfortunately it will not be
possible to positively sign the legal exemption for equestrians even though the
exemption exists, as no such signing is allowed. Officers will also ensure that
emergency vehicles will be exempt from the no-entry restriction in the legal
order.
Table 3: How would you classify your feedback regarding the proposed wider
footways and improved pedestrian crossing point on Wheelers Lane near
Burstow Primary School?
Number of respondents
Percentage
Fully support
52
74
Partially support
12
17
Don’t support
4
6
Blank/Other
2
3
Total
70
100
2.23 It can be seen from Table 3 that there was strong support for the proposals for
wider footways and improved crossing facilities on Wheelers Lane with 74%
indicating that they “fully support” the proposals. Some of the main issues that
were raised are paraphrased below, along with a response from officers:
2.24 Issue: What about the regular problem of vehicles parking half on the footway
and ignoring the yellow line parking restrictions?
Response: It is proposed that bollards will be positioned adjacent to the kerb
edges alongside the widened footways to physically prevent parking on the
footways. Yellow line parking controls will also be implemented as shown in
the plans. It is hoped that the provision of the off-street carpark off Redehall
Road will reduce the pressure to park on the street on Wheelers Lane and
Redehall Road. Officers will work with the school on initiatives to incentivise
children (and parents) to walk to school (including park and stride from the new
car park). It is intended that the works for the new carpark and highway
scheme will be coordinated in close succession.
2.25 Separately from the informal online consultation, a GP from Smallfield Surgery
contacted officers to express support for the scheme for helping to promote
active travel (which is healthier for people). The GP asked if seating could be
provided within the widened footways as this is often valued by older people
and those with mobility impairment so that they can take a rest while walking to
community facilities such as the surgery. A request was also made by the
parish council to include troughs for planting to enhance the public realm.
Therefore, officers will consult with local elected members and parish council
over the positioning and design of street furniture including bollards to deter
www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 96

ITEM 8

parking on the footway, provision of seating, planters and cycle parking stands
within the widened footways. Care will be taken to select materials with a
consistent design and to position them carefully to enhance the utility and
aesthetics of the public realm space created by the scheme.
3. OPTIONS:
3.1

Option 1: Proceed with implementing the whole scheme. The is the option
recommended by officers. There are more people in support of every element
of the scheme than against, and officers believe that the scheme will help to
mitigate the problems associated with school journey traffic, as well as making
it easier and safer to walk near the school and the centre of Smallfield.

3.2

Option 2: Proceed with implementing only parts of the scheme. It would
be possible to implement only parts of the scheme such as the provision of the
zebra crossing on Redehall Road and the footway widening on Wheelers
Lane, but without the “no-entry” into Wheelers Lane. The latter was less
popular, but still had more people in favour. This option is not recommended
by officers, as the full benefits of the scheme would not be realised.

3.3

Option 3: Do nothing. This option is not recommended by officers as there
will continue to be problems associated with school journey traffic, and poor
pedestrian infrastructure.

4. CONSULTATIONS:
4.1

The scheme was conceived in collaboration with the parish council, Burstow
School and local elected members for Tandridge District Council and Surrey
County Council. An informal public consultation was undertaken and is
described within section 2.

5. FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS:
5.1

The cost of the scheme will be met from a successful bid to Tandridge District
Council for Community Infrastructure Levy funding. The budget is £360,000.

6. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS:
6.1

The scheme will improve footways and crossing points and so will support the
ability for people with mobility impairment to walk or travel with the use of
mobility aids such as wheelchairs, mobility scooters or adapted bicycles.

7. LOCALISM:
7.1

The scheme will enhance the highway infrastructure for the local community to
reduce congestion and make it easier to walk and cycle in the centre of
Smallfield. This will support the local economy by improving the accessibility to
local shops and services.

8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
Area assessed:
Crime and Disorder

Direct Implications:
No significant implications arising
from this report.

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 97

ITEM 8

Sustainability (including Climate
Change and Carbon Emissions)
Corporate Parenting/Looked After
Children
Safeguarding responsibilities for
vulnerable children and adults
Public Health
8.1

Set out below.
No significant implications arising
from this report.
No significant implications arising
from this report.
Set out below.

Sustainability implications
The scheme will improve infrastructure to support more walking, push scooting
and cycling as an alternative to motor vehicle travel. It will also reduce vehicle
congestion in the centre of Smallfield. This will reduce emissions from internal
combustion engines which will reduce their impact on climate change. The
scheme also includes a rain garden to reduce the risk of flooding.

8.2

Public Health implications
The scheme will support active travel by making it easier to walk and cycle
which is healthier for people. It will also reduce air pollution in the vicinity of
Burstow School and the centre of Smallfield.

9. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
9.1

Following road safety incidents outside Burstow School in 2016, a report was
presented to the local committee in September 2017 describing an
investigation and suggestions for highway improvements to make walking
easier and safer. This was followed up by a meeting with the school, parish
council and local elected members to refine proposals in the immediate vicinity
of the school and the centre of Smallfield. These proposals formed the basis
for a successful bid to Tandridge District Council for £360,000 CIL funding in
2020. Outline designs were then published online and advertised to residents
and businesses to invite their comment in March 2021.

9.2

The results of the public consultation show that more people are in favour of
every element of the scheme than are against. It is therefore recommended
that the local committee approve the recommendations to proceed with
implementation of the scheme.

9.3

The implementation of the highway scheme will be subject to the successful
completion of proposals for Burstow School to lease a part of their playing field
off Redehall Road to Burstow Parish Council who will then construct an offstreet carpark for use by the community. At the time of writing, it is understood
the school are awaiting final approval from central government from the
Department for Education and this is expected in the next few weeks. The
highway scheme will then be delivered in tandem with the off-street carpark
scheme.

10. WHAT HAPPENS NEXT:
10.1 If approved by the local committee, the scheme will proceed to detailed design
and then formal legal consultation. If there are any objections, these will be
considered by the Chair and Vice Chair of the local committee and the local
county council elected member with advice from the Highway Engagement &
www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 98

ITEM 8

Commissioning Manager. Assuming any objections are then resolved or overruled, the scheme will then be implemented during the financial year
2022/2023. Wherever possible the implementation will take place at times
selected to reduce disruption to the travelling public and school community.
Contact Officer:
Duncan Knox, Road Safety & Sustainable School Travel Team Manager
Consulted:
Burstow School
Burstow Parish Council
Local County Council and District Council elected members
The residents, local businesses and road users of Smallfield
Annexes:
Annex A – Scheme Drawings
Annex B – Listing of Informal Public Consultation Responses
Sources/background papers:
Surrey County Council’s Road Safety Outside Schools policy
Response to petition submitted to Tandridge Local Committee
Surrey County Council - Agenda for Tandridge Local Committee on Friday, 22
September 2017, 10.15 am (surreycc.gov.uk) (item 133)
Response to petition submitted to Tandridge Local Committee
Surrey County Council - Agenda for Tandridge Local Committee on Friday, 21 June
2019, 10.15 am (surreycc.gov.uk) (item 14)

www.surreycc.gov.uk/ Choose an item.

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 101

ITEM 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 103

ITEM 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 105

ITEM 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 107

ITEM 8

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 8
APPENDIX B: Listing of Informal Public Consultation Responses
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “fully support”
1) The current 20mph limit is ignored so a physical change will hopefully warn drivers to be cautious on seeing a
crossing. When traffic levels are normal as before the pandemic on street parking conflicts with the flow of
traffic in rush hour.
2) Excellent idea. The no parking restriction should be supported by cameras to stop parking outside the shops.
The no parking restrictions should be extended to Plough Lane and Bridgeham Road. Residents should be
issued with a permit to allow one car to park in the road.
3) The proposal makes sense. Consideration should be given to installing cameras to enforce the parking
restrictions.
4) Clearing the through roadway has been needed for years, however it seriously needs policing. You already
have cameras so it should not be difficult to impose penalties for illegal parking! Theoretically the zebra
crossing should answer some problems since it is illegal to park within a distance!
5) THE ON STREET PARKING IN REDEHALL ROAD SHOULD NEVER HAVE BEEN PERMITTED IN THE FIRST PLACE.
THE FOOTPATH AND SECTION OF ROAD FROM BRIDGEHAM WAY TO WHEELERS LANE IS IN A VERY POOR
STATE AT PRESENT.
6) ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT THE PARK AND STRIDE CAR PARK IS IN OPERATION. Long overdue. No crossing
facility on Redehall Road puts lives at risk. The elderly are particularly vulnerable. The removal of on street
parking will make it easier to right turn out of Wheelers Lane.
7) Definitely need a proper crossing - positioning is fine - the removal of parking spaces will be necessary hopefully plenty of signage to warn of crossing .
8) 1) the construction of the additional car parking facility in the school playing fields should be completed
before this proposal is actioned
2) access into the car park in front of the shops should be made officially one way with entry from opposite
the Post Office
9) Will the zebra crossing have traffics, or is it just a zebra crossing with the dome orange flashing light.
10) Although three spaces on Redehall alot of the time there are vans/ extra cars parked. When busy traffic
impossible to pass unless someone is kind enough to stop the other way. Then staggered junction causes
further difficulty with cars edging out.There is no where safe to cross Redehall road. With cars parked along
you are having to try and see around the vehicles or rely on the fact that a vehicle has just gone one way so
nothing can then come the other way so to quickly cross.
Zebra crossing as long as in plain sight ( no road parking) will be amazing for all those in the village.
11) I believe this is needed.for the safety of the children that goes to Burstow School Also for the safety of the
general public really. Removing the on street parking will help ensure flowing traffic on that road
12) The Redehall Road parking (outside the Chemist) has always caused congestion peak times which in turn shuts
down visibility for pedestrians trying to cross what is a tricky area due it being a staggered 4 way junction.
Removal of parking would increase traffic flow which is advantageous for through traffic, but arguably make
crossing harder. However the Zebra crossing would mitigate this so is a good idea.The School has been unable
to provide a Lollypop person for at least 18 months so crossing at school times has been very difficult.As you
may be aware HGV deliveries to retail units on that road would have to be considered in these plans.
13) I fully agree with all the proposed schemes, the only thing that concerns me, is that even though there will be
the Park and Stride you will definitely still get cars being parked along Wheelers Lane. The road is narrow
enough as it is and the cars that park there cause problems for residents, also if there happened to be an
emergency, i am quite convinced that the Emergency Vehicles would have problems getting through. As the
parents dropping off and picking up just seem to park wherever they like.So with that in mind, is there going
to be some kind of restrictions to parking along Wheelers Lane?
14) An excellent idea.Would it be worth adding railings on either side of the pedestrian crossing, on both sides of
the road i.e. to ensure people use the crossing, and also discourage vehicles from stopping on the road? I
know it's illegal to park near or on a zebra crossing, but this will be ignored by some drivers if t hey know it
won't be enforced.I think you really need CCTV enforcement of no parking zones by the zebra crossing and
the Redehall Road, Wheeler's Lane, Plough Road junction.

Page 109

ITEM 8
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “fully support”
15) I am disabled and find it extremely hard to walk on the small pavements near to the chemist and also parking
is extremely difficult, I have trouble due to reduced leg mobility crossing the road to the shops opposite the
chemist, a crossing would make it a lot easier for me and other people. Especially because of the large
amount of speeding lorries.
16) It’s so dangerous trying to cross the road these days. I’ve lived here 40 years and attended Burstow school
myself, I now have a daughter who attends. Coming towards the village (from keepers corner way) at least
twice a day for school runs, trying to find somewhere to safely park this end of the village is an ongoing
nightmare. I always try to not go through the village as traffic is always horrendous, dangerous with so many
try to pass/park/get through, always some inconsiderate drivers that park on the double yellows outside the
post office making it so unsafe for all users. I prefer to park in Bridgham way and walk a bit, but I understand
this is a residential road and not always possible. The new car park would alleviate most of these problems.
17) The road needs a safe place to cross. The school has not had a crossing lady for ages now.
18) With the addition of alternative parking, the creation of park and ride in the field, I welcome this solution as
there are too many near misses and bottlenecks due to the on road parking. In the 30 metres between Plough
road and the Acorns you have a total of 5 exits and entry points on Redehall Road, and its difficult to navigate
it all as a standard pedestrian, even more challenging for those with small children and those that have
limited mobility.
19) Good idea
20) Much needed.
21) Would need enforcement/monitoring to ensure people didn’t park on it
22) The removal of the on street parking would be fantastic and a lot safer and having a zebra crossing would be
really beneficial for us to visit the local shops.
23) I fear the on street parking being taken away will force drivers and more traffic into Plough Rd where cars are
already breaking the speed laws. I fully support measures taken to slow and reduce traffic in the local area
especially at those cross roads!
24) Only worry is without the slow of traffic due to the one way nature how the parking currently is people will
speed through and it could risk someone using the crossing
25) This is a great idea, the road is very difficult to cross at the moment with parked cars obstructing views to
cross safely. It would also improve traffic flow past the shops
26) Excellent idea. Pedestrian crossing needed. Trying to cross road with school age child and pushchair is
nightmare. People do slow and give way sometimes but it is not ideal.
27) On road parking is dangerous as it obscures the view of traffic when trying to cross the road. It also creates
bottlenecks at busy times of the day.
28) Fully Support with some concerns
a) Foot paths need to be widened. At present pedestrians often have to walk into the road when footpath is
in use, especially during school pickup and drop of times
b) I feel it would still be important to have the Crossing supervised or controlled by traffic lights as Smallfield
is used as a popular short cut for people passing through to other areas, especially when either the M23 or
M25 are blocked.
29) The illegal parking on double yellow lines have to enforce, it is very dangerous & nothing has been done about
this to date. Relying on other council areas are not acceptable.
30) Very good idea to remove parking on Redehall Road but will any one take notice of double yellow lines.
31) As a local resident I think a zebra crossing is an excellent solution to the nightmare parking and driving at
school times especially
32) A zebra crossing by the shops is long overdue., as this a very busy road. With cars parked on the road it is a
hazardous place to cross so removing the parking and having a crossing will it so much safer to cross the road
here.
Also these actions should improve traffic flow.

Page 110

ITEM 8
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “fully support”
33) this is long overdue and vital to improve road safety
But I couldn't see any plans for creating a new footpath, going south from The Acorns to the new park-andstride car park (on the west side of Redehall Road). Will it not be difficult for people to exit the car park on
foot at peak traffic times? i.e. they will have to cross Redehall Road immediately after exiting the car park. Or
are there plans to install another zebra crossing there as well?
34) This stretch of road has been a pinch point for a long time. Whilst the parked cars do help slow speeding
traffic as it forces traffic to one lane. Sometimes you can be stuck waiting for a free lane for quite some time
during peak times, which causes frustration for drivers. The most dangerous factor at the moment is there is
no safe place to cross the road between the Pharmacy and the Co-Op store. You really are 'running the
gauntlet' when trying to cross the road here.
This will help keep traffic flowing and provide safe place to cross. I would recommend to have pedestrian
guardrail fence (https://www.barriersdirect.co.uk/assets/0002/0614/PedestrianGuardrail.jpg) added each
side of the crossing in front of the shops to stop pedestrians using the crossing at diagonals, short cutting
between cars as this could become more dangerous than the current open set up.
35) This has been a problem area for a long time - the on street parking regularly has exceeded available space
near chemists with vehicles often parked on yellow lines etc., and close to junction with Wheelers lane / PO crossing for pedestrians is hazardous and vehicles often ignore parked vehicle obstructions coming north
forcing near misses with southbound vehicles on Redehall road. A pedestrian crossing and removal of on street parking spaces should solve both preceding issues.
36) Its a very good idea .BUT please include some Traffic Calming down Wheelers Lane as some drivers will race
down it knowing nothing much is coming up..Sleeping Policeman or Pinch Points please ?
37) Will the raised platform in Redehall Road south side of the shops be removed as this is already a 20 mph zone.
38) Crossing the road currently there is dangerous and difficult to see due to on street parked cars.
39) I think this is an excellent idea to have zebra crossing by the chemist and also to get rid of the off street
parking as it will enable the school children and their parents to cross Redehall Road in a safe manner. It
would also benefit the residents of Smallfield as well.
40) A crossing is needed to make this road safer for children going to school, and patients going to the surgery.
41) I feel very strongly about providing a safe place to cross the road when walking the children to and from
Burstow primary school. I have witnessed many near accidents and angry drivers refusing to give way and
blocking the road. Removing the on street parking on Redehall road is a good idea if alternative parking can
be provided.
42) I have always been of the opinion that parking for vehicles on the north side of Redehall Road by the shops
should never have been allowed. In addition to the marked parking bays, many vehicles constantly park on
both ends of them creating an even bigger problem for through traffic and heighten the danger to
pedestrians.
A crossing place is definitely needed. I am not too sure that parents and children needing to cross from/to the
south side of Redehall Road will keep to the crossing. A proportion of them will simply gamble their chances
and short cut across from the school corner. I can also foresee that with the numbers of people shopping on
the south side and also needing the chemist shop and post office on the north side, the traffic will very
frequently be at a standstill with pedestrians constantly crossing from one side of the road to the other.
A pedestrian crossing controlled by lights would give all parties a fair chance - pedestrians not just stepping
out on to a crossing even not looking, and the traffic would be kept flowing.
43) See point 7.
44) These changes have been needed for a long time. That junction has been a nightmare for pedestrians and
motorists alike at peak times - traffic at a standstill, tempers fraying, parents with children trying to get to the
school. Surprised there have not been more accidents.
45) It will improve the safety of pedestrians wanting to cross the road and should improve visibility of vehicles
emerging from Wheelers Lane. It may reduce the speed of approaching traffic. However, the current parking
restrictions are ignored so what will the council do to enforce restrictions?

Page 111

ITEM 8
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “partially support”
1) I think this a good idea however as a resident of Broadbridge Lane I am concerned about safety on our road.
We presently suffer high levels of traffic (some at speed) using the road to avoid the slower speed on
Redehall Road. We have no footpaths or lighting on this narrow road which can make it dangerous for other
road users. The increase in vehicles using Broadbridge Lane will only make this situation worse. Would it be
possible to put in traffic slowing measures/reduce the speed limit?
2) The intention is good. The pavement on the WEST side of Redehall Road (NOT NORTH side as your drawings)
out side the Pharmacy is very narrow and a pinch point will be created by those waiting to cross
3) Why are we only concentrating on a Zebra crossing in this area, the proposal is ok but there needs to be safer
crossings in the rest of Smallfield especially on Wetherall Road
4) A zebra crossing is a good idea although I am not convinced certain people will stop at it so could cause
further accidents
The parking outside the chemist has remained over the years as it slows the traffic down.
There is currently parking at Centenary Hall yet people still park on the yellow lines so why would they walk
even further if there was parking at the school field? Not to mention the extra risk to all the children of
walking from the field to the school. The people who park on the yellow lines are not going to change that.
5) In favour of a crossing, but the current car parking spaces slow the traffic before the junctions, if removed
cars would come flying along there. I would be in favour of some other form of traffic calming in addition to
the crossing
6) I think the removal of the on street parking is correct, as is the zebra crossing. However I feel that the zebra
crossing should be where the existing crossing patrol is on Redehall Road
7) The current on street parking acts as a pinch point thereby slowing traffic flow through this busy section of
Redehall Road. Removal of the parking is therefore likely to increase traffic speeds despite the current
20mph limit and traffic table.
The zig zags will not prevent people parking on the approaches to the crossing as is demonstrated by the way
people currently ignore the double yellow lines outside the post office. This will actually increase the danger
to pedestrians using the crossing as sight lines will be restricted if parking occurs (although traffic speeds may
be reduced as per point one)
Many people are lazy by nature so will not use the new proposed car park if they th ink they can get away
with parking outside a shop “just to pop in”
Enforcement of the proposals is the key. Unfortunately this won’t happen
8) How will this be enforced ? People park all over the double yellow now, what is to stop people from parking
there just because you remove the bays.
9) This is a sensible proposal, providing that the extra parking facilities in the ‘field’ are approved
10) The on street parking created natural traffic calming - a slight narrowing of the road on the western side
(widening the pavement more) would give the perception of less space and therefore make the drivers
travelling north on Redehall Road, which is straight for a fair distance, to drive slower as there is nothing
physical to do that. As long as there is room for 2 fire engines to pass it is legal but will slow drivers down.
Will there be Pedestrian Traffic Lights/Belisha Beacons?
11) Crossing is a good idea bit removing the cars will cause speeding down Redehall road. We have a lot of older
people who struggle to cross now.
12) Worried that speeding trucks won’t stop in time unless there
are traffic lights. Will traffic actually obey the crossing.
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “don’t support”
1) Removing the parking in Redehall Road will SPEED UP TRAFFIC. In my twenty years of watching this junction,
I've seen that parked vehicles actually slow the flow of traffic from both directions.
Maybe it's wiser to have alternative parking available FIRST before going ahead with a scheme that will likely
make the junction more dangerous? We'll end up with cars parked up on kerbs, parked on the zebra crossing,
and on the 'sustainable garden'.
2) Think leaving the on Street Parking slows the traffic down cant see any use of a Zebra Crossing

Page 112

ITEM 8
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “don’t support”
3) Leave on Street Parking slows the traffic down outside Chemist
4) Your plans do not make sufficient reference to the size/scale of the new car park that is proposed. Also your
plans do not describe any level of detail on car parking access which you propose via Redehall Road. Having
moved into my home (opposite the playing fields) just 3 months ago, part of my attraction to the property
was the outlook over the playing fields, my decision to purchase would have been significantly different had
these plans and the proposed car park been known to me as it will impact the overall view from my home
and looking out over a car park is vastly less attractive, coupled with future saleability prospects which will
impact overall desirability for future buyers.
Please confirm what assessments have been undertaken (survey's etc) to determine likely car park usage if
this plan is to progress, please share any local community insights or survey results.
5) I think it would damage the trade of the local shops, who have kept us going through this tough period, we
need more parking not less.
6) The current road parking slows traffic down and we all know speeding is a common event along Redehall
Road as well as the village in general.
By removing the parking it makes it more difficult for the less able in the village to park closer to the shop s.
This in turn will have an impact on the local shops.
The zebra crossing if we are to have one should be opposite the school
7) I believe this to be fundamentally flawed. The on street parking acts as a choke point for what is otherwise a
speeding rat run. The parking forces vehicles to slow down. Removal of the parking would certainly lead to
accidents at the cross roads.
A zebra crossing is a good idea, but that should be positioned 75 yards north of the proposed location - in a
position where the school crossing patrol often is/used top be.
8) The people in this area would not all stop at zebra crossings and then it would put the children at a high risk
as they would assume it’s safe to cross there, when in easily it would not be. The removal of the on str eet
parking would allow drivers to race down the road, the lorries are not slowed by the speed bumps and traffic
only slow due to the on street parking.
Q1) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed zebra crossing and removal of on-street
parking on Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “Blank or Other”
1) Zebra Crossing Needed, Parking Required by those with restrudted mobility
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “fully support”
1) AT LAST something sensible! The junction has been crying out for this for years!
2) Wider exciting from junction gives better vision of Redehall Road, parking on that junction will be removed
making it safer for all road user and pedestrians.
3) This is a good idea.
4) The shops will need a delivery parking bay.
5) WILL ONLY WORK IF THE WHOLE LENGTH OF WHEELERS LANE FROM BROADBRIDGE LANE TO REDEHALL
ROAD IS ONE WAY.
WITH TWO WAY TRAFFIC AT PRESENT IT IS VERY DIFFICULT TO TURN LEFT FROM BROADBRIDGE LANE INTO
WHEELERS LANE. EVEN WITH ONE WAY TRAFFIC. THAT JUNCTION WILL REQUIRE RE-ALIGNMENT TO COPE
WITH THE INCREASE IN TRAFFIC THAT WILL OCCUR AS A RESULT OF THE PROPOSALS.
6) ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT THE PARK AND STRIDE CAR PARK IS IN OPERATION
Having lived at XX Wheelers Lane for over 30 years I am amazed there hasn’t been a fatality in the area.
Wheelers Lane is too narrow (in places) for 2 way traffic and there is a wide disregard of speed limits.
7) The existing junction is very dangerous - I think the inconvenience to residents of Wheelers Lane may be a
concern - but safety is the priority
8) Initially I feel it would be beneficial, although I think there needs to be some sort of speed preventatives
further down Wheelers Lane to slow people down.
Page 113

ITEM 8
9)

10)

11)
12)
13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)

19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)

25)

So sick of people parking literally on the corner of the road outside the post office. Will allow for a better
flow of traffic especially around school pick ups and drop offs. Will be easier to cross over wheelers lane to
the school. Not again stepping out between parked cars!
This would make crossing that area easier as there would be one less 'vector' of traffic to look for. It would
also prevent illegal parking outside the Post Office which further reduces visibility.
As a cyclist it is important to make sure the cycle lane is implemented as per the plan so sustainable transport
can continue to have full access to facilities up that road.
I feel a one way system would also make it easier to cross the road due to the traffic only passing in one
direction, this might make it easier to park too,
Has been required for many years to aid confusion at school times
Would need monitoring/enforcement
The junction is so dangerous and I have seen so many near misses and it’s not safe for the school children or
people trying to use the local shops.
Anything to help restrict traffic down the very narrow wheelers lane is a good idea, especially making it safer
for children accessing the school.
Good idea. Safer when taking child to school and picking up. Not having to dodge traffic.
This is a very dangerous 4 way junction.
I believe this is a very good idea, only concern would be the volume of traffic coming down Wheelers lane
and then turning right (or left) into Redehall Road, where you will have Parents and Children either coming
from the proposed Car Park or who naturally walk to School. It might be better if the Vehicle one way was
into Wheelers lane? Not sure which way would be best as pro's and con's both ways.
Not a problem for me
Not really a hardship having to go round to get to doctors etc. Will make road a lot safer and hopefully stop
parking right on the corner by the post office.
An excellent idea providing that any yellow lines are observed. An accident waiting to happen especially at
school times at the moment
it seems a good idea, but i would like to know more about the reason for closing access at the Redehall Road
end. the road does need to be one-way, but i'm not sure the road is being closed at the right end.
Again a very good plan
This will enable the school children to be able to walk to school safely and greatly reduce the volume of
traffic that goes down Wheelers Lane,
.
The Wheelers Lane junction with Redehall Road has, over the years, become a real hazard to pedestrians and
drivers alike. Many drivers simply pull up and park disregarding the yellow lines. Vehicles are frequently
parked right on the junction making the area dangerous and at school opening and closing times, extremely
so.
I live but a few hundred yards on the south side of Redehall Road from the area under discussion/plans, and
will avoid going to and through the Village during certain times of the day. The situation there is seldom
good. There are drivers of 4x4 vehicles who, having parked in the spaces in the shops’ own lay -by and
completed their shopping, return to their vehicles and drive straight over the kerb and pavement to make
quick access back on to the road.

IT IS INDEED A VERY HAZARDOUS AREA AND IT WILL ONLY BE A QUESTION OF TIME BEFORE A VERY SERIOUS
ACCIDENT HAPPENS THERE. IT CALLS FOR A MATTER OF URGENCY.
26) As a village resident with a daughter at the local school, I fully support these plans. We often walk or cycle to
school and I believe these changes would make those journeys much safer. I also sometimes drive to or
through the area when visiting the parade of shops or taking my son to Oakwood school and think these
plans would also improve those journeys too. I base these opinions on the current difficulty crossing Redehall
Road which, since losing our lollipop lady, often relies on the goodwill of drivers stopping to allow families to
cross, but also on the dangerous parking and driving that occurs on wheelers lane at school open and close
times (including double yellow and chevron parking and 3 point turns).
27) Much of the logjam at this junction is caused by cars trying to get into and out of Wheelers Lane while traffic
is trying to get along Redehall Road in both directions with only half the road available due to parked cars,
and traffic also trying to get out of Plough Road. Absolute chaos at times.

Page 114

ITEM 8
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “partially support”
1) 1) As turning right onto Redehall Road from Wheelers Lane is difficult with the current road layout it will
cause delay if single lane traffic coming out of Wheelers Lane need to turn left and right the traffic will need
to wait until right turn traffic had joined the the Redehall traffic before the left turn traffic could make their
turn. Would it not be better if the one way system entered Wheelers Lane from Redehall Road?
2) alternatively close off the Wheelers Lane/Redehall Road junction completely making Wheelers Lane a no
through road with two way traffic coming in from Broadbridge Lane.
3) Under the proposed scheme is Wheelers Lane to remain as two way from the Surgery/Centenary Hall car
park down to Broadbridge Lane?
4) Whilst there is provision for bicycles in the scheme there is no provision for horses which frequently pass
through the village.
2) I agree that Wheeler's Lane does need to be one-way, but I think it would inconvenience villagers less if the
one-way system operated in the reverse direction.
Also, the staggered junction between Plough Road, Wheeler's Lane, and Redehall Road does get very busy wouldn't it ease traffic flow better if traffic could not enter Redehall Road from Wheeler's Lane? Turning right
from Wheeler's Lane onto Redehall Road (heading south) is not easy due to reduced sightlines (blocked by
the PO building).
Alternatively, could a mini-roundabout be installed at the junction between Redehall Road, Plough Road, and
Wheeler's Lane? There is a bit of land available to the north of Plough Road, so maybe this junction could be
reworked?
3) I’ve said for years it needs to be a one way during school drop off and pick up times.
A school in copthorne that my eldest attended for a number of years (copthorne junior school) does a similar
thing where it’s voluntary one way system during school start/end times which worked very well, in most
parents opinion. It’s a tried and tested method that perhaps could be considered outside burstow school.
I think parents would be a lot happier if a “drop and go” one way system can be adopted. I personally
wouldn’t use it but can see it’s appeal to working parents. One way in wheelers lane, 8-9 am stop outside
school (not actual parking) and go. It would flow much better than lots trying to get through/park.
Or at least term time only one way, as I can see the frustration from local residents too.
4) A one way system is beneficial for reducing traffic and risk of accident at the junction, however I believe the
'no entry' should be at the other end of Wheelers Lane and the proposed traffic flow be reversed, instead go
east to west. It is a difficult junction to come out from Wheelers Lane on to Redehall Road especially when
you have plough road to contend with - the on road parking on Redehall Road outside the pharmacy actually
helped you get out of the junction - but as that should be removed as proposed, it will be even more difficult.
5) This was tried in the past but not approved, so I hope this time around some definite action will be taken for
the safety of pedestrians & children alike
6) Inconvenience
7) There are far too many people parking on double yellow lines opposite Burstow primary school and outside
of the post office , it is extremely difficult to cross the road when cars are parked on corners etc. I have never
seen anyone enforcing parking restrictions in 7.5 years of living in the village. I feel issuing fines and
enforcing parking restrictions may be an alternative to completely restricting entry. However, it may be
necessary to keep the flow of traffic moving through the village. Whilst walking the children home from
school yesterday a van mounted the footpath just metres away from us as he was too impatient to wait for
the vehicle in front to make a right hand turn at the junction.
8) It will impede emergency ambulance s called to smallfield surgery. It will lengthen the journey of Wheelers
Lane residents. However, I can see that it will make the junction safer. It is currently a nightmare due to the
behaviour of parents driving.
9) I think this a good idea however as a resident of Broadbridge Lane I am concerned about safety on our road.
We presently suffer high levels of traffic (some at speed) using the road to avoid the slower speed on
Redehall Road. We have no footpaths or lighting on this narrow road which can make it dangerous for other
road users. The increase in vehicles using Broadbridge Lane will only make this situation worse. Would it be
possible to put in traffic slowing measures/reduce the speed limit?
10) The references to accessibility to Wheelers Lane includes reference to access from Redehall Road. How can
that be if access is only from the west end i.e. Broadbridge Lane?

Page 115

ITEM 8
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “partially support”
11) A good idea but I fear will be disregarded by some.
Will cause problems on the day of the London to Brighton cycle ride as that is the only place to cross Redehall
Road from Plough Road to access the Western Hemisphere from the East. I accept that is only one day but it
still will be disruptive if not managed.
12) Something was going to have to give to allow this scheme to go ahead - and it is needed - so , in the interest
of safety, this no entry should go ahead - the bicycle lane is confusing - a oneway except for bikes?
13) Close at school times only keep access only at school hours for residents
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “don’t support”
1) Very bad idea to restrict access to Smallfield Surgery by rerouting vehicles round a large part of Smallfield
via a main access route. Redehall Road is alredy reduced to one lane for a large part of the day. Redehall
School use Redehall Road as a car park for Approx 12 -15 taxis in one lane leaving one lane for HGV traffic.
This will also restrict access to Burstow Council Facilities, closing easy access to the centre of the village to
local residents.
2) As I live opposite Wheelers Lane , Dont like the idea , We use this road regually dont like going over bumps in
Redehall Rd , which was agreed to be removed some 4 years ago .Cylist, Horses , people from Villlage will still
want to use this Road Centuary Hall & Smallfield Drs Surgery Wheelers Lane and will congest Broadbridge
country lane. Also when Covid 19 is over and the world back to normal British Heart Foundation Bike Ride
usually Father Day conly way out of Village as cant turn left or right From Plough Road
3) as living opposite Wheelers lane , we always go across to avoid bumps in Redehall Rd if goin g to Copthorne ,
also Horses use Wheelers Lane , Cylist too not safe at all ,would only congest Broadbridge Country Lane
when 424 buses is also diverted using when Road repairs in Redehall Rd, Keepers Corner. ,Broadbridge Lane
too. British Heart Charity Bike Ride Father's day only way our of Village when this runs , no left or right turn
out of our eRoad , only straight across . People will want to use Wheelers lane for Drs Surgery & Centenary
Hall too
4) Your plans do not make sufficient reference to the size/scale of the new car park that is proposed. Also your
plans do not describe any level of detail on car parking access which you propose via Redehall Road. Having
moved into my home (opposite the playing fields) just 3 months ago, part of my attraction to the property
was the outlook over the playing fields, my decision to purchase would have been significantly different had
these plans and the proposed car park been known to me as it will impact the overall view from my home
and looking out over a car park is vastly less attractive, coupled with future saleability prospects which will
impact overall desirability for future buyers. Please confirm what assessments have been undertaken
(survey's etc) to determine likely car park usage if this plan is to progress, please share any local community
insights or survey results.
5) It will force traffic into Broadbridge lane, that is already busy and when it rains it’s floods, making it
impassable, I don’t believe this has been thought through at all!
6) This will divide the village pushing more traffic down Broadbridge Road which is a bit of a rat race already
and also suffers from flooding. There are a number of dog walkers and horse riders who use Broadbridge
Road which would put them at considerable more risk. Again it will take people away from the shops which is
at the heart of our village.
7) This would force traffic on a circuitous route along other roads, thus forcing even more congestion on
already busy roads.
Although not a horse lover, many horses travel down that road on their way to exercise. This would cause
significant disruption and danger.
This is tackling a symptom - not the cause. the reason for the large amount of traffic outside the school is
people driving their children in from outside of the area. If the admission policy of the school was changed to
just local children, then the traffic volumes would decrease. These "drop off" parents ignore all of the traffic
riles anyway.
8) It would push traffic onto all other roads in the area.

Page 116

ITEM 8
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “don’t support”
9) You choose to make the main roadway and junction flow but hey, let’s throw all the diverted traffic back at
the worst junction!! If a one way system is required then taking traffic away from the junction makes much
more sense, so reverse the flow !!
10) I think it will make it difficult for people to access the surgery and centenary Hall.
In the case of road closure, which happened recently, then there is no immediate way of gaining access to
the surgery
11) Wrong end.
12) I live in new road and already this road is used as a cut through. If that junction is made no entry- our road
will be an absolute death trap and I am fully against this.
13) I fear it pushes more traffic into Plough Rd, and the surrounding roads so road safety will still be a big issue, if
it protects the children and makes them safer then I'm all for it.
14) Will cause a lot of traffic. People do already flout the rules for parking in this area and I’m sure they would do
the same to driving restrictions again causing safety concerns. I also worry about the increase of traffic on
Broadbridge Lane for most of which is without a pavement.
15) This would make the other surrounding roads, especially Broadbridge Lane so busy in what ia already a busy
area due to the large amount of HGV traffic on that road. This is a fatal accident waiting to happen if this is
implemented
16) No opinion on this proposal. It could be trialed with temporary barriers and signs and then residents who are
affected by this lane closure can give their feedback. I don't see the permane nt one way exit of the road
necessary. If there is a local traffic problem during the school run, then the school could put cones across the
junction to stop cars entering the road during the school time only and not have it permanently installed.
17) Would be a lot better to have one way system in opposite direction westbound from junction of redehall
road and wheelers lane to school entry/exit so that access to school, nursery schools, doctors and centenary
hall can be made simply from the main road (redehall road) - no entry proposed will necessarily increase
traffic on Broadbridge lane and particularly at junction with Wheelers Lane which is a very poor
elbow/cranked T junction - in addition traffic exiting from Wheelers lane eastbound at Redehall road as
proposed has always been an issue as the existing “crossroads” are offset, priorities are blurred and again
many a collision/near collision has been observed here which could all be avoided if traffic is not able to exit
Wheeler lane going east as currently proposed, and instead only entry eastbound is made instead.
18) Why make this a NO ENTRY it is totally unworkable.
This will push more traffic into Broadbridge Lane which is already extremely busy with cars and numerous
HGVs especially the Fullers lorries, with the new houses also needing access to Broadbridge Lane at busy
times we will be queueing for ages trying to get out of the junction. There are lots of p eople using Wheelers
Lane and this will add to confusion of drivers and increased journey times, forcing much more traffic on the
Wetherall Road causing extra problems for traffic at the roundabout and for pedestrians trying to cross the
road. If the double yellow lines and parking restrictions were enforced especially at school times then it
would not necessary to make alter this junction.
It seems as if the needs of the school for outweigh the needs of the local community
19) The proposal to make Wheelers Lane one way will push traffic onto Broadbridge Lane to access it. For the
most part there is no footpath up this Lane which will put residents, walkers, horse riders and cyclist at risk.
The lane also floods in bad weather to the south of Wheelers Lane making access for people extremely
difficult. Also it states cyclists will be allowed to go the wrong way up Wheelers Lane but no mention of all
the horse riders in the village who use it most days to access the bridleways off Peeks Brook Lane. They will
be forced onto Smallfield Road which has much more traffic including a lot of larger vehicles. There is no
traffic calming on this road so will put people at risk. Also, it is hard to turn right out of Wheelers Lane onto
Redehall so why have it one way in that direction.

Page 117

ITEM 8
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “don’t support”
20) This will create more problems that it solves. My biggest concern is the extra traffic pushed onto broadbridge
lane. If you need access to wheelers lane coming into Smallfield for the south your only route is broadbridge
lane which at some times of the year is impassable due to flooding. If leaving wheelers lane heading north to
Horley, you would have go over the speed bumps on broadbridge lane to exit onto Weatherhill road. This will
lead to extra wear and tear on a residents vehicle. This will also push extra traffic past the children’s play
ground I also fear that by making the road effectively one way, traffic flowing in that direction will have
greater confidence on not meeting on coming traffic that they will be inclined to go faster. I w ould be in
favour of some sort of width restriction for vehicles entering from redehall road. The amount of HGV traffic
passing through wheelers lane is completely unnecessary.
21) With both Centenary Hall and Smallfield Surgery in Wheelers Lane by making this a no entry you are causing
more traffic along Broadbridge Lane and Wheelers lane where the footpath is narrower and only on one side
of the road.Also Wheelers lane is a narrow road between the Doctors surgery and Broadbridge lane which
would result in increased congestion for most of the village who live at the Redehall Road end of Wheelers
lane
22) I have been told this is for children’s safety, how will the children be safer ? What will be done to stop
parents parking on zig zags and double yellows as this is the real safety issue. How would this have prevented
the tragic accident when a child was run over ?
23) Blocking it will cause excess traffic in Broadbridge Lane and with the new houses, early mornings and
afternoons will be even worse. Also very inconvenient for people trying to access the doctors surgery and
Centenary Hall
Q2) Please let us know your comments below regarding the proposed no entry restriction into Wheelers Lane
at the junction with Redehall Road?
Comments from those who selected “Blank or Other”
1) No strong feelings either way on this.
2) If the Redehall Road changes are implemented, then that may improve the situation without needing further
changes
3) Do not support this
Q3) Please let us know your comments below regarding the wider footways and improved pedestrian crossing
point on Wheelers Lane near Burstow Primary School?
Comments from those who selected “Fully Support”
1) 20mph is ignored so a physical change will hopefully warn drivers to be cautious on seeing a crossing, it's a
school and one of the most important parts of our community. Children and Parents should be safe and feel
safe around the school access and be physically distanced from moving traffic.
2) I fully support the proposal. The pavement leading from the proposed new car park also needs widening.
Consideration should be given to curb the speed of vehicles along Redehall Road. The speed humps are not
effective. Many people drive vehicles with high road surface clearance. Speed cameras may be a better
option.
3) This has been needed for some time.
Residents parking should be addressed with designated bays controlled by permits.
4) Long overdue
5) GOOD.
6) ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT THE PARK AND STRIDE CAR PARK IS IN OPERATION
They need widening. I would also support parking restrictions from the surgery to the junction with Redehall
Road if they could be enforced effectively.
7) If they can be maintained regularly a good idea.
8) If there is to be a Park and Stride on Redehall Road it will be necessary to have a crossing to the school
entrance
9) A great idea - will prohibit car parking on the double yellow lines if the small circles on the plan indicate
bollards.

Page 118

ITEM 8
Q3) Please let us know your comments below regarding the wider footways and improved pedestrian crossing
point on Wheelers Lane near Burstow Primary School?
Comments from those who selected “Fully Support”
10) I fully support the wider footpaths and improved pedestrian crossing outside the school. My main concern
however is people parking on the footpath. I live immediately where the pedestrian crossing currently is and
I am plagued with people parking part on the footpath and part across my drive. Although I agree to
widening the footpath, what measures will be in place to prevent people seeing this as an easier wider area
for them to park without the need to use the park and stride. There has always been the facility to park in
the Centenary Hall car park instead of Wheelers Lane, but it is rarely used,,,, it appears much more
convenient to park on a footpath or block in a resident.
11) Better for all families accessing the school, safer. Stop 'racers' around the village shooting down wheelers
lane.
12) Again, good idea for the safety of the children and people in the village
13) Having safe corridors of pedestrian access from all directions is imperative and this measure would ensure
that in conjunction with the other measures outlined above.
14) A good idea
15) This would benefit children and parents, and would be very helpful in general, especially if the traffic was
going in one direction.
16) Absolutely required for the safety of the children
17) It’s much needed. Whoever put the metal railings in outside the school only encouraged idiots to walk the
wrong side of them, due to the fact that it’s narrowed the pathway a lot, so 2 pedestrians cannot pass each
other without stepping aside.
18) This will make the road much safer for children who attend the school and stop the parking on double yellow
lines
19) Currently the pavements are unsuitable for the school size
20) Anything to improve safety for the kids or the elderly would always get my vote.
21) If the children are safer then I fully support
22) Wider footpath gives a safer pedestrian area outside the school offering great improvements to safety
23) Very awquard at moment with pushchair and trying to social distance, is almost impossible.
24) This will make it much safer for those using the school and the surgery
25) This will not only improve the access for parents and children but also for anyone with a disability.
26) seems logical and also aids flood prevention
27) Currently the footpaths are very narrow so widening them is an excellent idea
28) Long overdue.
29) seems to make sense - the loading bay for lorries also seems a good idea
30) All seems like a good idea from the plans.
31) Excellent idea
32) This will help parents with children at the school.
33) This will enable children to walk into school safely, knowing they are safe.
34) This is sorely needed.
35) I approve of anything that could improve the safety of the children, elderly, dog walkers etc. in the village.
36) Wider footways will improve sight lines. However, if/when Wheelers Lane cannot be entered from Redehall
Road that should make for immediate and direct improvement. A pedestrian crossing point would be very
advantageous.
I FIRMLY BELIEVE THAT WHEN THE IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED FOR THE BENEFIT OF
EVERYONE, PEDESTRIANS IN PARTICULAR NEED TO BE EDUCATED TO USE THE CROSSING PLACES PROVIDED.
THE SCHOOL COULD PLAY AN IMPORTANT ROLE WITH THIS via INITIAL MEETINGS and then REMINDERS IN
SCHOOL NEWSLETTERS etc. I CAN IMAGINE THERE WILL BE COMPLAINTS FROM DRIVERS WHO WILL NEED TO
ACCESS THE DOCTORS’ SURGERY BEMOANING THAT THEY HAVE TO GO ALONG WEATHERHILL ROAD and
BROADBRIDGE LANE (with the traffic speed humps) into WHEELERS LANE!
37) See point 7.
38) Can only make things easier for pedestrians along this stretch at school in and out times.

Page 119

ITEM 8
Q3) Please let us know your comments below regarding the wider footways and improve d pedestrian crossing
point on Wheelers Lane near Burstow Primary School?
Comments from those who selected “Partially Support”
1) Not really a necessity if traffic flow is reduced!
2) What about the rest of Wheelers Lane, the footpath on the length of the road is poor and allows one person
to walk at a time, why does the school need a wider footway when the whole community would benefit from
better footpaths along the length of Wheelers Lane. Enforce parking restrictions and then walking on
pavements and crossing the road would be much easier and safer
3) This would be beneficial. Although again I would be concerned about whether a zebra would be wise.
4) I can see that the Foot path could be improved as tight by railing by school enterance , but even if you put
yellow lines in road wont in my opition make any difference to parking. Crossing Point could be dne by a
person like the old days
5) I agree with this but not at the cost of making wheelers lane one way
6) I’m not sure why widening the footpaths will help much but agree a crossing point would be useful but this
should be on Redehall Road opposite the school You would be better off moving the school on to the schools
paying field and create parking there too. The school rarely use it.
7) Increasing the footpath width means the road will be narrower. Whilst I support that the school drop off/pick
up time will be even more chaotic as those who use vehicles to take their children to school will abandon
their vehicles wherever they want, as many currently do. Some will use the new proposed car park but many
won’t want to walk the 100+m due to laziness, running late, the weather, self-serving ignorance etc
8) Wider footways, yes. Pedestrian crossing as already stated should be 75 yards further north .
9) Further thought is requires as to the how vehicles will be displaced / and possibly on -street park on Wheelers
Lane - a loading bay appears helpful for shops etc., but prohibition/enforcement against private vehicles on
street parking may be necessary -to be clear, parking on the entire length of Wheelers lane on both sides
appears needs to be prohibited as parked vehicles narrow the roadway so that 2 way traffic is not facilitated the no entry and /or one way will no doubt make traffic issues worse on Wheelers lane especially if on-street
parking remains possible on Wheelers lane,...
10) The problem is not really the lack of pavements but the way a lot of the children from the school are not
supervised by parents. They are allowed to run around in the roads and very small children often are not
controlled by parents. If this happens on a fast road like Redehall road it will lead to more disastrous
situations. Wheelers lane is at least a slow quiet road so traffic is slow and children in the road are expe cted
there. The speeding lorries on Redehall road will be lethal to children that are not strictly supervised.
11) This is presumably being done to narrow the road and discourage parking. However, my house is currently o
on the narrowest section of Wheelers Lane and people park there all the time, making the road dangerous
and at times unusable . Unless the council enforces the parking restrictions, people will continue to park
there due to human nature and laziness. I suggest you erect cameras which will automatically capture
nunberplates to enable fines to be issued to offending vehicles. I can see that wider paths will encourage
pedestrians and the enhanced ped crossing will reduce the liklihood of accidents for school users
CAMERAS ARE REQUIRED TO FINE OFFENDING VEHICLES. The council is currently in dereliction of its duty to
ensure current parking restrictions are enforced and I have had enough of it.

Page 120

ITEM 8
Q3) Please let us know your comments below regarding the wider footways and improved pedestrian crossing
point on Wheelers Lane near Burstow Primary School?
Comments from those who selected “Don’t Support”
1) Maybe it's wiser to have alternative parking available FIRST before going ahead with a scheme that will likely
make the junction more dangerous by introducing competition for the few possible areas to park? We'll end
up with cars parked up on kerbstones, parked on the zebra crossing, and on the 'sustainable garden'. Have
you all really thought this through? If you leave the exit from Wheelers Lane wide enough for 2 vehicles, a car
WILL park there for the shops or school. How do you propose to permanently change people's long -standing
habits of parking on double yellow lines?
2) Your plans do not make sufficient reference to the size/scale of the new car park that is proposed. Also your
plans do not describe any level of detail on car parking access which you propose via Redehall Road. Having
moved into my home (opposite the playing fields) just 3 months ago, part of my attraction to the property
was the outlook over the playing fields, my decision to purchase would have been significantly different had
these plans and the proposed car park been known to me as it will impact the overall view from my home
and looking out over a car park is vastly less attractive, coupled with future saleability prospects which will
impact overall desirability for future buyers. Please confirm what assessments have been undertaken
(survey's etc) to determine likely car park usage if this plan is to progress, please share any local community
insights or survey results.
3) The Crossing point should not be moved from the current position
4) Change pinch point to one side of the road instead of pinched either side of the road so you can cross
without two cars either side trying to get through before one another which would make it safer to
cross.
Q3) Please let us know your comments below regarding the wider footways and improved pedestrian crossing
point on Wheelers Lane near Burstow Primary School?
Comments from those who selected “Other”
1) I can see that by railings by School are sometimes a little tight when some passes you with a Pushchair , no
harm having a crossing there only
2) As above

Page 121

This page is intentionally left blank

Local Committee Decision and Action Tracker
This tracker monitors progress against the decisions and actions that the Local Committee has made. It is updated before
each committee meeting. (Update provided on 15/11/2021).

Page 123

•

Decisions and actions will be marked as ‘open’, where work to implement the decision is ongoing by the Local/Joint Committee.

•

When decisions are reported to the committee as ‘complete’, they will also be marked as ‘closed’. The Committee will then be
asked to agree to remove these items from the tracker. For some decisions the Committee and public will be able to monitor the
progress through Surrey County Council website. A link to the webpage will be included on the item when marked as complete.

•

Decisions may also be ‘closed’ if further progress is not possible at this time, even though the action is not yet complete. An
explanation will be included in the comment section. In this case, the action can remain on the tracker should the Committee
request.

ITEM 9

Meeting
Date

Decision

Status (Open /
Closed)

1

30
November
2018

Petition 1 – requesting a crossing Closed
on Burntwood Lane.

Officer

Comment or Update

Area Highways
Manager

Caterham on the Hill Parish Council have
provided funding for a feasibility study
into this scheme. The study completed
and results provided to Parish Council
and Divisional Member.
Caterham Hill Parish Council are funding
a dual legend Vehicle Activated Sign that
will flash both 30 “SLOW DOWN” and the
school warning sign. This will be
installed downhill from where the school
pupils cross.

2

6 March
2020

Page 124
3

6 March
2020

Petition- Concern requesting
improvements on the Pendell
Road and Merstham Road
Junction Bletchingley. The Local
Committee agreed that the road
safety engineering team would
meet with the resident/petitioners
on site to help understand the
extent and nature of the problem.
Following investigation a highway
safety scheme will be developed
for implementation within the next
financial year.

Closed

Bus Clearways - The Local
Committee agreed to a bus stop
clearway at Salmons Lane Green
and at Church Road. Limpsfield

Closed

Road Safety
Team

Passenger
Transport and
Parking team

COMPLETE The scheme to provide new
chevrons, hazards marker posts, refresh
existing white lining as well as new
hatched markings around the bend,
provide various new ‘slow’ markings
throughout, vegetation clearance to
enhance existing signage and new road
studs to guide vehicles around the bend
completed March 2021.
This has been funded from the council’s
central budget for addressing collision
hotspots managed by the road safety
engineering team.
COMPLETE - An order has been sent to
the contractor for lining however require
a spell of reasonably dry weather as they
cannot be installed on wet roads.

ITEM 9

REF
number

4

6 March
2020

Road Warlingham as it is
important that buses are able to
access stops to provide step free
access and ensure passengers
are able to safely board and
alight, especially those with
mobility issues, wheelchair users
and those with push chairs.
On Street Parking Review 2020

Anticipated that this will be carried out by
the end of this financial year (weather
dependant).

Closed

Parking team

Page 125

COMPLETE– The team have started the
parking review lining, but it is not
completed, partly because they are still
catching up after May and also because
some of the markings sprayed for them
to show the extent of the lining were
washed off. Parking officer planning to
revisit this week to replace them and will
then ask them to go back. The signing is
scheduled to take place at the end of this
week and the beginning of next week.
Updates available
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-andtransport/parking/local-news-andupdates/tandridge/tandridge-parkingreview-2020

5

6 Nov 2020

Open

Highways

Chaldon Village Council are seeking
funding so that the scheme can be
progressed.

ITEM 9

Speed review – Chaldon.
Subject to external funding being
available, agreed to change the
speed limit on Church Lane,
Doctors Lane and Hilltop Lane as
speeds in accordance with
Surrey’s speed limit policy.

This page is intentionally left blank

Local Committee (Tandridge) - Forward Programme 2021/22
Details of future meetings
Dates for the Tandridge Local Committee 2021/2022: 4 March 2022
The Committee meeting commences at 10.15am. This forward plan sets out the anticipated reports for future meetings. The forward plan will
be used in preparation for the next committee meeting. However, this is a flexible forward plan and all items are subject to change. The Local
Committee is asked to note and comment on the forward plan outlined in this report.
Topic
Decision Tracker

Page 127

Local Committee Forward
Programme
Right of Way
Godstone CP576
Smallfield Pedestrian
Safety and Accessibility
Scheme

Purpose

Contact Officer
Partnership
For information
Committee Officer
Review the Forward Programme and consider further themes for
Partnership
Member briefings
Committee Officer
To consider a Right of Way application.
Countryside Access
Officer
£360k CIL money was obtained for this scheme, now finalising the Duncan Knox
designs and need to feedback on the consultation (from March)
and seek local committee approval to proceed with the scheme

Proposed date
ALL
ALL
Mar 2022
Mar 2022

ITEM 10

This page is intentionally left blank

